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Consolidated operating revenues

281,606 KDH
+12.6%

Consolidated operating earnings

26,886 KDH
Margin of 9.5%

Consolidated net income per share

25.9 DH
Net margin of 6.5%

Cash Flow from operations

+ 77,327 KDH
Cash Flow 21.4 MDH

Price Earning Ratio

9.65
As at Dec. 31, 2012

KEY INDICATORS

Other revenue  
10%

Cross Selling 
20%

Services  
22%

Middle East  
20%

Africa  
25%

Europe 
46%

Asia 
4%Americas  

5%

New Projects 27%

Maintenance 
21%

Revenues by type

Revenue by region
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Dear 
Shareholders,

In an economic environment which remains 
uncertain, we are continuing every day to deploy 
our strategy to achieve results that ensure our 
customers' satisfaction and help our long-term 
growth in the interest of our employees and our 
shareholders. In 2012, in accordance with our 
commitment and strategy of profitable growth, we 
achieved the objectives that we had set ourselves: 
our revenue increased 12.6% to 281 million 
Durhams and our operating margin amounted 
to 9.5%. 

Operational performance. The payment industry 
remains involved in profound changes related 
essentially to the emergence of new technologies 
and new patterns of consumption. Faced with these 
changes, industry players are making strategic shifts 
at the same time as increased volumes and the 
development of new payment channels are arousing 
the appetite of new entrants. These developments 
naturally lead to risks and challenges and risks for 
all players in the industry. But the fact remains that 
while these transformations are arousing some 
apprehension, the new needs created by these 
changes are above all new sources of opportunities 
for market participants.

In this environment, with its wealth of challenges, 
our Group achieved excellent operational 
performance, with sales up 55% from 2011.

Indeed, it is by forging close relationships with our 
customers and by maintaining a strategy favouring 
close proximity with them, that we been able to 
support them in their development projects on a 
daily basis. And sign of the confidence that we are 
witnessing by our customers, "Cross selling" sales 
increased by 37% in 2012.

But it is especially our strategic positioning and 
our culture of innovation that let's us not only 
meet today's needs, but also be prepared to seize 
opportunities and meet tomorrow's challenges. 
And it is through this constant quest for innovation 
to make our solutions the very best in the market 
in 2012 that we were able to double our sales in 
terms of new contracts. These performances have 
let us not only increase our worldwide market share, 
but also strengthen our geographic presence, 
particularly in Latin America, the Middle East and 
Asia.

Furthermore, the continued investment in our 
solutions, continuous improvement of our business 
processes and our organization in autonomous 
regional entities have allowed us to further improve 
our operational effectiveness. These efforts have 
enabled us in 2012 to improve the average time for 
implementation of client projects, greatly improve 
our operating margin and release cash flow of 77 
million Durhams.

Sustainable growth. Our strategic vision is not 
to become the largest player in our industry, but 
the best. To achieve this, we strive to achieve 
performance and results which guarantee the 
satisfaction of our customers, employees and 
shareholders. Our financial strength is the 
foundation of this commitment and allows us to 
constantly invest in our solutions to improve the 
benefit of our customers, offer stimulating careers to 
our employees and provide superior returns to our 
shareholders.

This coherent and structured approach has allowed 
us, throughout our history, to ensure sustainable 
growth based on solid natural growth and controlled 
development.

Our ability to generate growth, to increase profit 
margins and to maintain significant Research and 
Development investments, build on our strategy of 
operational excellence and profitable growth for the 
benefit of all our partners.

Looking to the future. With its wealth of 18 years 
of experience in global development of electronic 
payment, HPS has transformed in recent years to 
become one this industry's benchmark players. 
Our PowerCARD solution is operated by over 320 
institutions in over 70 countries and continues to 
conquer new markets.

In this context, we are now better equipped 
than ever to continue our development strategy 
by supporting our existing clients while taking 
advantage of new opportunities offered by the 
current changes underway.

In the medium term, our objective is to maintain an 
average annual growth in the double digits over the 
next five years and a target of 20% of operating 
profit in the long term. We believe that 2013 will be 
another year of growth for our Group and will be in 
line with our objectives.

To reach our objectives and continue our 
development, we are confident in the ongoing 
support of our employees, customers and 
shareholders. While we continue to invest in the 
future success of HPS, we are convinced that our 
Group has delivered solid performance in 2012, and 
we remain optimistic about the opportunities that 
await us in the long term.

                                  Mohamed Horani
                      President and CEO
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Governance

The HPS Group

HPS' development strategy is 
based in part on creation of new 
subsidiaries, strategic acquisitions 
and creation of Joint Ventures.

Founded in 1995 in Morocco, 
HPS has steadily extended its 
geographical presence by creating 
HPS Dubai in 2003, and then 
HPS Europe in 2008. The primary 
objective of these 2 offices was to 
develop business in these regions 
by decentralizing a dedicated 
sales force, responsible with direct 
marketing and leading a network of 
regional partners.

In 2011, the new organization 

The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is 
responsible for the Group's 
management and administration. It 
determines business orientations 
and oversees their implementation. 
It deliberates on the main 
strategic, economic, financial or 
technological orientations as well 
as on the subjects that the law has 

The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was 
established to monitor and 
manage the Group's operational 
performance Its main functions are 
to translate the strategic guidelines 
adopted by the Board of Directors 
into operational Action Plans, 

The Auditors

The Auditors are appointed 
every three year by the General 
Assembly. Their mandate may 
be renewed at the expiry of this 
period.

The Auditors are responsible for 
auditing and monitoring corporate 
and consolidated accounts. They 
have an ongoing responsibility 

strengthened the authority of the 
regional organizations to make 
the autonomous organizations 
able to effectively offer all of the 
Group's services, while benefiting 
from the central support functions. 
To support this strategy, staff 
from Dubai were consolidated 
after several years with dedicated 
development and support 
staff. The European office was 
strengthened following acquisition 
of ACPQualife in 2010 whose staff 
provide part of the integration and 
support for projects in the region.

Finally, continuing this 
development strategy, we created 
HPS Americas in late 2011 to 

expressly entrusted to it.

Since 2012, a remuneration 
committee was established by the 
Board to assist it in its functions. 
The main tasks of this standing 
committee are defining the Group's 
overall wage policy, and managing 
the executive committee's pay.

The Board of Directors is 
composed of 3 shareholders 

support General Management 
in setting priorities, monitoring 
operational performance and 
implementing Action Plans. It is 
a body dedicated to managing 
the Group's operations, reporting 
directly to the Board of Directors.

The Executive Committee consists 

of the Group's President and CEO, 
Directors General and Deputy 
Directors General.

to check compliance of the 
accounting with the rules in force. 
They also check accuracy and 
consistency of the accounts 
with the summary statements, 
information given in the Annual 
Report of the Board of Directors 
and in the documents sent to 
shareholders on the company's 
assets, financial position and 
results.

The Auditors also ensure that 
equality is maintained between 
shareholders.

develop our activities on the 
American market.

On another note, HPS developed 
a Processing range by creating 
regional dedicated joint ventures in 
partnership with local benchmark 
partners.

In 2004, GPS was created to serve 
the Middle East region, while ICPS 
was created in 2007 to service the 
Indian Ocean region.

who are employees HPS S.A., 2 
shareholders who are employees 
of ACPQualife, and 6 independent 
directors.

GPS Bahrain ICPS Mauritius

25
%

50
%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

20
% Auditors Associate Appointment Mandate ends

Ernst & Young Bachir Tazi 28/06/2010 AGM to approve the  
2012 statements

A. Saaidi and Associates Nawfal Amar 22/06/2012 AGM to approve the  
2014 statements

HPS
Casablanca, Head Office

Subsidiaries Joint Venture

HPS 
Dubai

ACP 
Qualife

HPS 
Europe

HPS 
Americas
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Positioning 
Industry

H
PS overview

HPS is a group that specializes in development of electronic multi channel payment solutions . The group is now 
present on four continents and operates in over 70 countries in Europe, Asia, the Middle East, Africa, and America.
HPS puts Research and Development at the top of its strategic priorities to further develop our solutions in order to 
make them even more flexible and responsive to the technological and economic changes underway.

Issuers

Acquirers

Switches

24/7
SUPPORT
24/7
SUPPORT

24/7
SUPPORT
24/7
SUPPORT

24/7
SUPPORT
24/7
SUPPORT

24/7
SUPPORT
24/7
SUPPORT

24/7
SUPPORT
24/7
SUPPORT

Migration

Consulting Support

TrainingProcessing

Implementation

PowerCARD-Issuer
• Client Origination, Boarding, Activation & Retention
• Full Product Issuing & Management Functionality (Prepaid, Debit, Credit, etc.)
• Powerful and Flexible Account Management
• Fraud & Risk Management, Chargeback, Disputes & Collections
• Real-time & Multichannel Loyalty Management
• Powerful Fee Generation Capabilities
• Powerful & Effective Customer Service Capability 

PowerCARD-Secure
• Secure Electronic Authentication for eCommerce Transactions
• Enrolment & Products Management
• Multiple Authentication Support - Digital Certificates, Token, Mobile & Password
• Visa & MasterCard Compliance

PowerCARD-Mobile
• Wallet Management
• Mobile Payment 
• Mobile Banking
• Money Transfer

PowerCARD-WebPublisher
• Multiple Company Systems Data Aggregation 
• Website Content Configuration, Personalization & Segmentation
• Website Publishing 

PowerCARD-Acquirer
• Merchant Origination, Boarding, Activation & Retention
• Sophisticated Billing, Clearing, Settlement & Reporting
• Fraud & Risk Management, Chargeback, Disputes & Collections
• Multiple Pricing & Charging Capabilities, DCC & Scheme Fee Management
• Merchant Campaigns & Promotions Management
• Efficient Merchant Management Support

PowerCARD-POS 
• Terminal Management System
• POS Switching & Device Driving
• Transactions data capture
• POS Value-added Services (DCC, Bill Payment, Cash-Back, Tax Refund)

PowerCARD-ATM
• ATM Management
• ATM Switching & Device Driving
• ATM Monitoring
• ATM Value-added Services (Bill Payment, Cash Deposit, Card-less Withdrawal)

PowerCARD-eCommerce
• Merchant Integration Direct, Redirect, Batch & Web Services
• Personalized Checkout Page
• Recurring & Instalments Payments Options Management
• Merchants & Operators Web Portals Management

PowerCARD-Switch
• Authorization & Message Switching
• Store And Forward (SAF)
• Active-Active Functionality
• Multichannel Integration & Management
• Enhanced Interchange Management
• High Level of Performance

With our expertise in the field of electronic 
payment and our presence in several countries 
and economic communities, we have create the 
PowerCARD software suite, with the objective 
of creating innovative solutions, responding to 
all the issues of payment and adapted to all the 
players, regardless of their area of activity.

PowerCARD is a suite of integrated and modular solutions for overall 
management of the payment system. Developed by following the most 
advanced standards in terms of efficiency and safety, it can handle all 
types of payment transactions on all available channels.

Its scalable architecture allows it to be adapted to all sizes of company 
and to meet different customer needs. PowerCARD is in fact a highly 
configurable solution that provides its users with maximal customization 
and reactivity for fit the nature of their activities and support their 
development. With an ergonomic and user friendly interface. PowerCARD 
offers great ease of use and significantly reduces the costs of integration, 
development and training for new solutions related to new product 
launches.

60 MDH
Revenues in licensing 
PowerCARD

HPS offers a range of services to ensure optimal 
implementation of payment solutions by our 
customers, taking into account their business 
and technology requirements.

HPS staff responsible for services draw on their  
thorough knowledge of the payment industry 

and their expertise around the PowerCARD family, to provide turnkey 
solutions that cover all our customers' needs. The wide range of services 
includes both understanding clients' specific needs as necessary for 
customization, installation and configuration of solutions within the 
customer's environment, the necessary integration of  software in the 
customer's overall information system, and including certification by 
international networks.

140 MDH
Revenues from 
payment services

28 MDH
Invested	in	R&D	in	2012

145 
Persons responsible for services

03
Regional production centres

20 %
Workforce assigned to R&D

Our organization lets us serve our 
clients from multiple service centres 
based in Europe, the Middle East and 
Africa. These regional centres are 
self-contained organizations able to 
effectively offer all the Group's services.
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Global 
Presence

Our main markets are currently the European, African and Middle Eastern markets, which represented 90% of our 
overall business in 2012. However, our Group has a global vision and the Asian and American markets are regions 
for medium term development. HPS has the support of a number of prestigious references in Malaysia, Viet Nam, the 
Philippines,  Canada, Brazil and the Caribbean.

Europe – Americas

144.8 MDH
51% share of global revenue

+ 70 countries
on five continents 

Middle East - Asia

65.9 MDH
24% share of global revenue

Africa

70.9 MDH
25% share of global revenue

+ 320 financial institutions
using PowerCARD platforms for their financial transaction processing

02 processing Joint Ventures
electronic payment processing operations for more than 30  
financial institutions

06 National or regional switches
PowerCARD at the core of electronic payment processing in 18 countries

+ 100 production sites
mainly banks, financial institutions and telecom operators 
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Environment and  
Opportunities

The electronic payment 
market
Worldwide electronic payment 
volumes should reach 750 billion 
USD in 2020 compared with 300 
billion USD in 2010. This market, 
hitherto bot perceived as being 
profitable, displays goof dynamics, 
so that it has attracted new players 
that have been competing with 
financial institutions in recent 
years. 

In this rapidly changing market, the 
major long-time payment systems 
market players have been able to 
capitalize on their expertise and 
their reputation to market new 
and even more advanced services 
and  expand their presence in the 
industry. These large institutions 
have been steadily joined by 
promising players, who focus 
solely on electronic transactions, 
taking advantage of the 
opportunities that technological 
innovations and/or their strategic 
positioning provide.

Innovation now makes it possible 
for many companies to challenge 
financial institutions on their 
traditional ground, challenging 
long-held concepts in the field of 
payment systems. 

Some are arriving on the Bank's 
traditional markets, others are 
illustrated by the creation and 
management of an innovative 
electronic payments, peer-to-
peer model environment. These 
payment systems ingeniously 
support new modes of 
consumption on the internet by 
offering reliable and secure cash 
flow systems.     

In emerging markets, the banks' 
main competitors are the mobile 
operators. Indeed, these are 
successfully offering more and 
more direct mobile payment 
services, in a context where 
approximately 60% of the world 
population does not have a bank 
account, but where there are more 
than 5 billion mobile phones in 
circulation in the world.

The most extensive mobile 
payment service is the M-PESA 
program in Kenya, whose 
success has encouraged 
investors to extend their service 
to other countries in Africa and 
in Afghanistan. In India, by major 
mobile phone carriers entered the 
payments sector, by creating a 
system that can link millions of the 
country's mobile phone owners to 
the ubiquitous network of micro 
resellers. 

With this wave of new players, 
more innovative than the others, 
traditional financial institutions are 
adapting through partnerships with 
new market entrants, often small 
companies and start-ups with a 
promising offer that guarantees 
strong competitiveness in the 
market.

Such operations allow the banks to 
offset their difficulties by innovating 
in payment systems. Companies 
and startups chosen in the context 
of these operations also get their 
funding by relying on a large 
partner that is capable of making 
a well established distribution 
network available to them which 
can guarantee the success of their 
offering.

In addition to more competition 
on the market in recent years, 
banks face another challenge, that 
of profitability. Indeed, financial 
institutions bear in mind that 
despite the growth of payment 
volume, the margin generated 
per transaction is decreasing. 
This observation requires them to 
obtain a high share of volumes, 
but also reduce operating costs 
to preserve margins. On this last 
point, they particularly depend 

on investment  in innovative 
technologies for more conclusive 
results.

Change in payment volumes 
in billions USD

The experiences of Mobile and 
Payment convergence are still 
timid but promising.

Finally, the giants of the web are 
the latest entrants in the market, 
targeting the value chain of parts 
processing and client interface. 
Although these companies have 
only a little experience, or even 
none in this area, they can rely on 
the powerful capital of consumer 
confidence as well as strong 
customer loyalty, thus providing 
valuable benefits that banks are 
now striving to regain. The web 
Giants are capitalizing on their 
growing popularity among young 
people, who have not yet had time 
to become attached to a bank in 
particular

750 billion USD 
volume of payments in 2020

5 billion  
mobile phones in the world

+ 150 %

750

20202010

300

Key factor: Increase in 
volume

Electronic payment volumes 
continue to rise worldwide and 
various studies forecast that 
payment transactions should 
grow in volume at an annual 
rate of 9%. HPS should take 
advantage of the growth in 
transaction volumes due to 
replacement of old platforms 
that are incapable of managing 
increasing volumes, and 
with the granting of licence 
extensions for additional 
volumes that will be generated 
by our existing customers. 
HPS also plans to diversify its 
business model to make offers 
based on transaction volumes.

With increasing electronic 
payments around the world, 
the risk of fraud is becoming 
increasingly important and 
financial institutions are putting 
fraud detection among their 
main concerns. Furthermore, 
due to the issues of organized 
crime and money laundering, 
financial institutions are facing 
increased surveillance and 
regulatory pressures. We 
believe there is an opportunity 
there to deliver our solutions 
to help our customers better 
manage these needs.
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+30%
per year for users  
of mobile payments

Payment by mobile 
Mobile Payments are all 
transactions made from a mobile 
phone and charged on a credit 
card, an operator invoice or on an 
electronic wallet.

These innovative means of 
payment are the subject of many 
experiments in many countries as 
well by mobile operators, banks, or 
even cities.

NFC (Near Field Communication) 
technology should in a few years 
be the most used in developed 
countries to allow communication 
between mobile phones and 
payment services because it uses 
the existing banking infrastructure. 
Meanwhile, the payment methods 
most often used currently by 
mobile are still remote payments 
(m-commerce, payment via SMS, 
applications).

The transfer of money from mobile 
to mobile is particularly developed 
in developing countries, where 
many people do not have a bank 
account.

EMV and SEPA standards 

Adoption of the EMV standard has 
continued to grow since it was 
created, buoyed by the success of 
initial deployments in Europe, and 
figures on fraud reduction.

In 2012, the number of EMV cards 
issued worldwide exceeded 1.5 
billion, and the number of points of 
sale accepting EMV cards reached 
more than 20 million units.

Globally, and with the exception of 
the United States, 40% of payment 
cards issued are EMV compliant 
smart cards, that can be accepted 
in more than 71% point of sale 
devices. 

The SEPA, mainly centred in the 
European Community and the 
United Kingdom, is designed to 
facilitate the reduction of costs 
for cross-border payments and 
reduce time limits for settlement of 
electronic payment transactions. 
The transition to SEPA payment 
mechanisms will increase volumes 
to be managed and potentially 
encourage banks to review the 
capabilities of current systems. 
However the current uncertainty on 
the future of the Euro area could 
further delay the implementation of 
SEPA payment mechanisms.

The NFC is a short range wireless communication technology 
allowing the exchange of information between a NFC device 
and another NFC device or with certain existing contactless 
infrastructures. In 2011, the NFC was equipping 50 million 
Tablet PCs or mobile phones, a volume that could reach 300 
million in 2013. 

Mobile payments initiatives using NFC are multiplying and the 
ecosystem will rebuild itself as the mobile phones inventory 
is renewed, mainly toward Smartphones. But for the mobile 
payment market to be put in place, the traders and acquisition 
network which is yet to be built must also be equipped. Although 
the economic model may be complex because of the new costs 
it generates, contactless payment, enabled by NFC technology, 
has many assets both strategically and technologically. Unlike 
online payment, it requires no new acceptance network, it 
allows simplified and faster use for small amounts, it allows 
a mobile payment without connectivity and it could function 
without energy as a standard payment card. 

EMV is a global standard for credit and debit cards, based 
on smart card technology. The EMC provides more powerful 
security features and new features that are not possible with 
magnetic stripe cards (contactless card, electronic wallet, 
identification, medical records, etc.).

EMV has become the global standard, with many regions around 
the world working on deployment. While there were 1.5 billion 
of EMV cards in circulation in the world in 2012, adoption of this 
standard is not yet effective in the United States. But like other 
regions, card issuers are required to issue new integrated chip 
cards, and acquirers are required to accept EMV cards. The 
EMV standard, as well as opportunities for ancillary applications 
that the chip allows, will continue to offer opportunities for 
development in new markets and for supporting our existing 
customers.

Key factor: NFC and mobile financial services

Key factor: Adoption of the EMV standard in the USA

The mobile payments market
in millions of users

Deployment of the EMV standard worldwide
Data to end Q1 2011

1.5 billion  
EMV cards in the world by the end of 2012

20 billion  
EMV terminal by the end of 2012

REGION EMV CARDS ADOPTION RATE EMV TERMINALS ADOPTION RATE 

Canada, Latin America, and 
the Carribean 207,715,358 31.20% 3,900,000 76.50%

Asia Pacific 336,602,681 27.90% 3,480,000 43.00%

Africa and the Middle East 23,003,747 17.60% 345.000 60.70%

Europe Zone 1 645,472,323 73.90% 10,500,000 89.00%

Europe Zone 2 27,516,286 12.70% 513.600 65.40%

Totals 1,240,310,393 40.10% 18,738,600 71.10%
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2009 2012 2017

500 MDH

200 MDH

Our goals

HPS today...

Growth

... in the future

Diversification of revenue sources

Strengthening operational margins

Revenues in millions of Durhams

Repeating revenues in millions of Durhams

Future revenues in millions of Durhams

2012 Revenuesin %

Operating Margin in %

Our strategic priorities are focused on consolidation and growth of our core 
business, by developing new products, markets and business that supports the 
future growth of HPS

In 2012, we recorded growth of 12.5%, in line with the objectives that we set 
ourselves last year.

Our business growth is based on different lines of development:

• Consolidating the current position of HPS in its traditional markets including 
Africa, the Middle East and, to a lesser extent, Europe.

• Developing our positioning on major international projects and priority markets 
(Europe, South America, North America and Asia) which provide HPS with 
short and long term growth.

• Launching new products and services designed to maximize our value to our 
customers.

• Implementing new business models to boost growth in the long term for HPS 
(transactional model, processing, etc.)

We balance our activities in different geographic regions for better long-term 
prospects and controlling volatility. This lets us take advantage of the market 
growth in the short term, while positioning ourselves on a diverse base of revenue 
sources.

HPS also continues to diversify the nature of its revenues both through 
diversification of its product offering and by diversification of its business models. 
This lets us consolidate a solid base of repeating revenue while continuing to seek 
new growth drivers.

HPS has as its objective to confirm its position as a major 
player in the electronic payment industry, and the strategic 
directions for the next five years will provide HPS with the 
means to achieve this. The main lines of these directions 
are to diversify our business models to build repeating 
revenues, expand our network of partners and thereby 
expand our geographic presence, and finally to address the 
market of major financial institutions worldwide.

The achievements in 2012, despite an economic 
environment which remains uncertain, seem to 
demonstrate that the directions taken are bearing fruit: 
a new transactional business model has been finalized, 
partnership contracts are currently being finalized and 
PowerCARD is today a solution that is being seriously 
evaluated by major institutions.

We believe that the year 2013 will be a year of construction 
which will see the operational implementation of strategic 
projects launched in 2012. These achievements will allow us 
to continue  rebuilding our earning capacity and establish 
the foundations of our future growth, with the objective of 
reaching about 20% operating margins in the long term.

While strengthening our investment efforts in terms of sales force, HPS Group 
product strategy and delivery capacity, HPS continues to make efforts to 
streamline costs and research group synergy to optimize and improve its 
operating margins.

20132009

225

2010

256

2011

250

2012

282

2009 2010 2011 2012

86 99 106 124

328

21

Asia 4%
Services 22%

Other revenue 10%

Maintenance 20%

Cross selling 21%

New customers 27 %

Americas 5%
Middle East 20%

Africa 25%

Europe 46%

2009 2010 2011 2012

-4

10

8

Our Strategy

"The Group's strategy is, firstly, to 
consolidate our current position in 
our traditional markets as a publisher 
of electronic payment solutions. The 
recognition enjoyed by our solutions 
by industry professionals, such as 
Gartner, or even our prestigious 
references, let us be positioned as a 
key player in Africa, Middle East and 
Europe.
At the same time, we are continuing 
to build our geographic development 
by the steadily strengthening our 
international presence, either by 
direct implementations, or by 
commercial partnerships and joint 
ventures.
Finally, the last part of our strategy is 
to diversify our business model and 
address the transactional model for 
sales of licenses. This diversification 
let us strengthen our repeating 
revenue and capitalize increases 
volumes."

 Samir Lamrissi Garcia
 EVP Strategy
 HPS Group

Licences and associated services

Existing customers
Transactional Model

Services 
Other income
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Products and
              Solutions

HPS completed significant product enhancements 
and innovation. HPS has strong integration 
capabilities with its own modules, as well as other 
applications.

HPS is beginning to win deals that support larger 
financial institutions 

Gartner
World leader in IT consulting
and research

Products and Solutions

22  PowerCARD-Issuer
23  PowerCARD-eSecure
24  PowerCARD-Mobile
25  PowerCARD-Webpublisher
26  PowerCARD-Acquirer
27  PowerCARD-POS
28  PowerCARD-ATM
28  PowerCARD-eCommerce
29  PowerCARD-Switch
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PowerCARD
A global payment platform

PowerCARD-Issuer in 
Jordan

PowerCARD-eSecure in Palestine

"Today, more than 320 institutions 
are operating our solutions in over 
70 countries worldwide.
At HPS, we understand that the 
payment industry in which we 
operate is continuous change and 
we make it a point of honour to 
develop a global payment platform 
that is able to support innovative 
payment methods and respond 
proactively to changes in the market.
To remain at the forefront of our 
industry, HPS is making major efforts 
to develop solutions at the leading 
edge of technology that offers even 
more options for making payments 
and that provides alternatives to 
those who are not able to use 
traditional payment methods. To 
maintain our position as market 
leader, we we are resolutely 
committed to R&D."

 Philippe Vigand
 Deputy Director General
 HPS Solutions

HPS has just signed a contract to supply a 
complete electronic payment management 
solution for the Jordan Islamic Bank (JIB), 
one of the largest Islamic banks in Jordan. 
The platform that will be set up will allow 
the JIB to integrate innovative services 
based on PowerCARD-Issuer  such 
as issuing rechargeable prepaid cards 
and cards dedicated to e-commerce 
payments, management of funds transfer, 
settlement of invoices, e-gov payment 
services and additional services such as 
balance inquiries, transaction records 
and chargebacks. In addition, a special 
service dedicated to the blind and visually 
impaired will be developed using the ATM 
with voice assistance.

PowerCARD-Issuer 
PowerCARD-Issuer provides 
comprehensive services for the 
issuance and management of all 
types of cards (prepaid, debit, 
credit, business cards, gift cards) 
and all the formats(magnetic cards, 
EMV and contactless).

PowerCARD-Issuer is designed 
to meet the needs of all types 
of issuers including national and 
global financial institutions, banks, 
finance companies, retailers and 
private card processors. 

PowerCARD-Issuer with multi-
currency, multi-product, multi-
institution and multi-language 
capabilities allows card portfolios 
in different countries and from 
different issuers to be managed on 
a single platform.

A customer-oriented service is 
essential to development and for 
the success of card issuers. At 
the heart of PowerCARD-Issuer 
is a powerful relational database 
which, by providing an overview 
of clients and transactions made 
by cardholders, allows issuers' 
revenues to grow through the 
loyalty of existing customers and 
by acquiring new customers. 

This database also allows issuers 
to analyze the relationship they 
have with each of their customers 
and the data is easily accessible 
for the profiling and segmenting 
customers.

PowerCARD-Issuer also covers all 
management functions associated 
with processing card issuance 
activities such as fraud and risk 
management, chargebacks, 
disputes and collections 
management

PowerCARD-eSecure allows for a 
high level of authentication page 
configuration and management 
of multiple page templates for 
each of product, adjusting them 
automatically for not only the 
browser and the character font 
used but for the related product.

PowerCARD-eSecure helps build 
the confidence of online payment 
users. Among the main advantages 
of the solution:
• Reduction of fraud by securing 

transactions, prevents 
purchases being made online 
with only the information on the 
card; 

• The merchant has no access 
to the buyer's password and 
authentication involves only the 
issuer and card holder; 

• Reduction in the number of 
chargebacks for merchants, the 
card holder being authenticated 
when buying online.

• Enhanced security for the issuing 
bank by limiting the automatic 
transfer of responsibility.

PowerCARD-eSecure complies 
with PA-DSS, Verified by Visa and 
MasterCard SecureCode.

PowerCARD-eSecure
PowerCARD-eSecure is a 
secure identification step added 
to payments made online that 
allows a financial authorization 
to be associated with an online 
authentication. 

PowerCARD-eSecure is a multi-
institution and multi-product 
solution which provides 3D-Secure 
services to institutions and 
allows them to manage multiple 
products on the basis of the 
BIN(Bank Identification Numbers). 
Authentication and registration 
methods are defined at the product 
level.

Bank of Palestine customers can secure their online payments 
through the PowerCARD-eSecure solution. The solution enables 
secure transactions by authentication codes in addition to the data 
entered on their cards. Based on the 3D-Secure security used by Visa 
and MasterCard standards, PowerCARD-eSecure helps strengthen 
online payments users' confidence.
BOP has been named 'Best bank in Palestine' by EuroMoney in 2012 
for the second consecutive year. The distinction recognizes the bank's 
innovativeness and also honours HPS and the PowerCARD solution 
that enables management of all the bank's innovative payment 

offerings.
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PowerCARD-Mobile 
PowerCARD-Mobile is a 
comprehensive solution, marketed 
independently of telecom 
operators, offering consumers 
and merchants efficient and 
secure banking and mobile 
payment services. The solution 
is compatible with all types of 
phones.

PowerCARD-Mobile lets 
consumers easily manage their 
virtual prepaid account as well 
as their cards and external 
accounts and supports standard 
card authorization and account 
messages from external systems.

The solution gives merchants the 
possibility of acquiring payments 
made by mobile or by card through 
their Smartphones.

Consumers can transfer funds 
between accounts on the same 
PowerCARD-Mobile platform as to 
an external recipient. The solution 
offers flexible options for cash-in 
and cash-out via ticket vending 
machine, agencies or partner 
networks.

PowerCARD-WebPublisher 
PowerCARD-WebPublisher is a 
web portal solution for issuers 
and acquirers to meet the 
specific needs of their clients. It 
is a unique solution that simplifies 
the construction, operation and 
maintenance of web portals for 
consumers, businesses and 
traders.

PowerCARD-WebPublisher allows 
data from different sources to be 
consolidated, and configuration 
and modification of custom web 
portals. Data from different hosts 
are aggregated without storage to 
give users a single view of relevant 
information.

Services offered to consumers 
include card management 
(statements, PIN changes, card 
replacement and suspension) and 
account management (transaction 
history).

Business services include 
management of cards and 
accounts (list of cards by service, 
new card orders, restriction of use) 
and user management (hierarchy 
and delegated management of 
users).

The solution offers several banking 
informational and transactional 
services such as consulting 
the balances and transaction 
statements, mobile top-up, bill 
payments, etc.

PowerCARD-Mobile is completely 
secure and is compatible with 
multiple transmission channels 
(USSD, IVR, GPRS, Web, SMS 
and email).  PowerCARD-Mobile 
natively interfaces with the suite of 
PowerCARD solutions and can be 
interfaced with other systems. 

Merchant services include 
monitoring payments and 
transactions, managing and 
tracking claims, activity reports 
and information about merchants 
(contract, services, point of sale 
and equipment).

PowerCARD-WebPublisher is 
a highly configurable solution. 
Changes are applied in real time 
and are immediately available with 
the next connection to the portal.

PowerCARD-WebPublisher 
provides a comprehensive set of 
services Web designed to meet IFX 
standards.

PowerCARD-WebPublisher has 
interfaces that integrate natively 
with to PowerCARD solutions to 
optimize operations.

After the solution for recharging 
cards via the IVR and mobile 
channels has been launched, 
BMCE customers benefit from 
mobile banking services offered 
that are even more comprehensive 
after the PowerCARD-Mobile 
production started in 2012.
From their mobile phones, bank 
customers make account transfers 
and card-to-card transfers, make 
bill payments, telephone refills 
and order cheques, tracking and 
reporting and receiving SMS alerts.

Web banking services are now accessible using the PowerCARD-
WebPublisher solution offered by ICPS to clients of various banks 
in the region. Customers can manage their prepaid cards from their 
bank's portals and have services such as consulting statements, 
changing PIN or requesting replacement cards. 
ICPS, the joint venture between HPS and MCB (Mauritius Commercial 
Bank), offers banks a prepaid card management solution such as 
gifts and travel cards through web portals on the PowerCARD-
WebPublisher platform.

PowerCARD-
Mobile in Morocco

PowerCARD-Webpublisher in 
Mauritius
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PowerCARD-Acquirer 
PowerCARD-Acquirer is a 
comprehensive management 
platform for merchants that 
allows acquirers to offer tailor-
made solutions for all types of 
merchants, from the smallest to 
world scale merchants.

PowerCARD-Acquirer is a 
multichannel solution that enables

PowerCARD-POS is a multi-
protocol solution, compatible 
with the leading brands of Eftpos 
terminals. Point of sale terminals 
managed by PowerCARD-POS 
accept all types of card (prepaid 
cards, debit, credit, loyalty or 
private cards), regardless of their 
format (magnetic, EMV and chip, 
contactless, etc.). 

acceptance of any payment mode: 
in person, online or by phone. 

Merchant accounts and 
transactions are managed and 
stored in PowerCARD-Acquirer, 
which allows acquirers to have 
total control of billing, clearing and 
settlement processes. Transactions 
managed by PowerCARD-

PowerCARD-POS also offers 
equipment maintenance functions 
(information on outages and 
maintenance interventions, 
resupply of consumables based 
on the volumes of transactions, 
billing settings of equipment, 
maintenance and consumables).

Acquirer are automatically settled 
with the merchant according to 
the set options. Fees charged to 
merchants and transaction costs 
are calculated and managed by 
PowerCARD-Acquirer thereby 
facilitating collection from 
merchants.

Merchants' service and transaction 
are managed by a powerful and 
sophisticated fee generation 
system that allows acquirers to 
propose various interesting pricing 
options to merchants.

The multi-currency, multi-agency 
and multi-languages capacities 
of PowerCARD-Acquirer enable 
dealing with cross-border 
acquisition transactions. The 
possibility offered by PowerCARD-
Acquirer to manage merchant 
portfolios located in different 
countries and various acceptance 
institutions meet the needs of 
world-class merchants.

PowerCARD-POS 
PowerCARD-POS allows banks, 
retailers and providers of payment 
services to quickly deploy 
new services, simplifying the 
deployment of their electronic 
payment terminals (Eftpos) 
worldwide, while controlling 
management and maintenance 
costs.

PowerCARD-POS has natively 
integrated PowerCARD-switch 
interfaces to optimize transactions, 
and can be seamlessly integrated 
with other external solutions. 

PowerCARD-POS provides 
a sophisticated management 
and routing Eftpos system, for 
capturing transaction data and 
supports value added services 
at Eftpos such as DCC (Dynamic 
Currency Conversion), bill 
payment, cash discounts, and tax 
refunds.

HPS has successfully started management of the acquisition activity for 
Middle East merchants of American Express using the PowerCARD-
Acquirer platform.
With this launch, HPS has completed  migration of American Express 
payment activity and the HPS platform is now behind all transactions 
carried out by American Express in 18 countries in the MENA region.
PowerCARD has enabled AMEX to migrate to a single integrated 
solution instead of 16 applications previously used for management 
of all issuance and card acquisition operations in 18 countries, 19 
currencies and three languages.
This success confirms the confidence of American Express, a group 
that occupies a world leader position in the card payment and credit, 
exchange, travel and international banking services sectors.

PowerCARD-Acquirer for the MENA region

PowerCARD-POS in Europe

HPS has started a new project for a European player to supply a 
complete PowerCARD solution: Card issuance, merchant acquisition, 
management of Eftpos (electronic payment terminals) and ATMs 
(automated teller machines) and management of interfaces with the 
Visa and MasterCard systems.
The PowerCARD-POS solution will include a multitude of innovative 
products and will allow this industry player to diversify its services and 
the payment channels available to its customers.
With this new contract, HPS is continuing its international development 
and is consolidating its presence on the European market. With a 
commercial entity in Paris and a production centre in Aix-en-Provence, 
HPS was able to consolidate its position in this major market where it has 
major clients in various sectors of activities, including Credit Agricole 
Cards & Payments, subsidiary of Credit Agricole France, leading bank 
in France and first European bank in terms of retail banking network 
and leader of the electronic payments in Europe.



Products and Solutions

Products and Solutions -	Annual	Report	201228 29HPS Overview -	2012	Annual	Report

PowerCARD-eCommerce 
PowerCARD-eCommerce is a 
multi-merchant and multi-acquirer 
solution for e-commerce and 
management of MOTO payments, 
offering easy integration with 
merchants' computer systems by 
offering multiple methods of data 
submission.

PowerCARD-ATM 
PowerCARD-ATM provides a 
comprehensive set of solutions 
that enables financial institutions 
to manage, secure and offer more 
services with added value on their 
ATMs.

PowerCARD-ATM allows 
management of multi-vendor 
device networks, problem 
detection and management, 
remote management and 
troubleshooting, alert generation, 
daily settlements, trial balance and 
reconciliation.

PowerCARD-ATM provides 
sophisticated tools to continuously 
monitor the ATM network and 
notifies appropriate supervisors 
when an ATM is defective or is 
short of cash by sending alerts by 
email and SMS to ensure that the 
ATMS are available at all times.

Personalization of ATM screens 
in managing tailored promotions, 
PowerCARD-ATM helps 

PowerCARD-eCommerce provides 
merchants with a sophisticated 
self-service portal that allows 
them to personalize each payment 
page. Through the Web portal, 
merchants can manage their 
transactions in real-time, enter 
transactions manually via the 
Virtual Terminal (MOTO), perform 
return transactions and exchange 
secure messages with eCommerce 
operator.

PowerCARD-eCommerce supports 
3DSecure transactions and has 
an interface integrated with the 
PowerCARD suite.

PowerCARD-Switch 
PowerCARD-Switch is a 
platform for reliable, robust and 
scalable routing, SEPA and EMV 
compatible. The platform allows 
for multi-channel authorizations 
management, transaction 
routing, settlement reconciliation 
and optimized interchange 
management.

Providing 100% uptime with 
the active-active option and a 
processing capacity of 3,000 
transactions per second, the 
platform meets the requirements of 
processing operators perfectly. 

PowerCARD-Switch natively 
integrates PowerCARD-Acquirer 
and Issuer PowerCARD interfaces 
to optimize transactions and 
enable issuers and acquirers to 
use a unique and reliable platform 
for all their transactions.

PowerCARD-Switch manages 
the clearing process with all 
international 

PowerCARD-eCommerce 
offers flexible payment options. 
Customers can pay by the most 
popular payment methods on the 
Internet and new methods can 
easily be added. Customers can 
choose their currency and choose 
their most appropriate payment 
options.

PowerCARD-eCommerce can not 
only be synchronized with external 
systems for market data, BIN 
ranges beaches and exchange 
rates through Web services, but 
it also natively interfaces with the 
other PowerCARD solutions suite.

easily be adapted for management 
of the compensation process via 
additional payment networks such 
as private payments regional or 
national systems.

financial institutions improve 
their customers relationships by 
transforming ATMs into mini-
branches that are open 24 hours a 
day, 7 days a week.

PowerCARD-ATM offers a wide 
range of services such as the 
cash withdrawal, balance and 
transaction consultation, ordering 
cheques, managing personalized 
customer messages, depositing 
cash and cheques, changing PINs 
and bill payments.

payment networks such as Visa, 
MasterCard, American Express, 
Diners Club, Japan Credit 
Bureau (JCB) and China Union 
Pay (CUP) thereby providing 
worldwide connectivity and global 
acceptance. PowerCARD-Switch 
can

PowerCARD-ATM in Vietnam

After signing the Mekong Development Bank (MDB) supply contract 
for the latest PowerCARD version to provide management of all services 
offered by the Vietnamese bank's card, HPS put the PowerCARD into 
production. This start-up is the first batch of the solution relating to 
debit cards and the GAB server.   
Once all batches of PowerCARD have been deployed, the solution 
will allow for flexible and innovative management of all MDE payment 
card services such as issuance and processing of credit cards, debit 
cards and prepaid cards. Similarly, this latest version of PowerCARD 
developed for MDB will provide new features such as biometric 
authentication of the card holder.

PowerCARD-eCommerce 
in Bangladesh

PowerCARD-Switch in Ghana

HPS has started a new project in Bangladesh 
for Eastern Bank Limited (EBL), one of the 
largest banks in the country. 
This new project will let EBL manage all of 
its electronic banking business: issuing and 
processing cards (credit, debit and prepaid), 
management of ABMS and Eftpos Terminals.

EBL also chose PowerCARD-eCommerce to 
strengthen its capacity for innovation and to 
offer its clientele high value added products 
around cards, internet banking and online 
financial services. 
EBL, created in 1992, has quickly emerged as one of the largest private 
banks in Bangladesh and is considered to be the most innovative Bank in 
the country. It is the first bank in the country to offer modern online financial 
services.

GhIPSS, the national centre in Ghana, has the job of managing electronic 
banking  interoperability for the banks and financial institutions in 
Ghana. On 27 August 2012, the first interoperability transactions 
for the Ghana banking system were successfully started on the  
HPS PowerCARD-Switch platform. The first phase of the project allows for 
management and operation of payment transactions and ATM transactions, 
both nationally and internationally, and processing of Ghanaian interbank 
withdrawals.
In a second phase, the PowerCARD-Switch platform will allow GhIPSS to 
provide the card issuance and ABM and Eftpos acquisition activity for banks 
that do not have an issuer back office or ATM or Eftpos front-end.
Finally, putting the GhIPSS Switch successfully into production confirms the 
expertise acquired by HPS in this area. The PowerCARD-Switch solution 
manages electronic payment activities of several national and regional 
switches around the world, covering 18 countries in Africa and Europe.
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Organizations now have the opportunity to 
improve their card solutions by replacing legacy 
hardware and software with something much 
more flexible and cost-effective. HP is viewed 
by many as the OEM of the payment industry, 
and our tests confirm PowerCARD as a robust, 
scalable complement to HP’s own Payments 
Solutions. Organizations of all sizes can now 
boost the cost-effectiveness and competitive 
positioning of their card issuing, switching and 
acquiring solutions.
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Prospects for the global economy

The economic situation has 
improved slightly in the third 
quarter of 2012 and global growth 
accelerated to around 3%. The 
main sources of this acceleration 
are emerging countries, where 
activity has picked up more or 
less as expected, and the United 
States, where growth was higher 
than expected.

On the financial markets the 
situation has stabilized. Differences 
in bond yields in the peripheral 
countries of the Euro area 
declined, while the prices of many 
risky assets, including stocks, 
increased worldwide. The financial 
situation worldwide continued to 
improve in the fourth quarter of 
2012. 

However, according to a broad 
set of indicators of industrial 
production and global trade, 
global growth has not continued to 
accelerate.

In fact, the recovery in the third 
quarter was explained in part by 
temporary factors, including an 
increased accumulation of stocks 
(mainly in the United States).

spending cuts will be replaced 
by focused measures at the end 
of the period and that the pace 
of fiscal contraction (for general 
government) in 2013 will still be 1 
¼ % of GDP.

It also masked old and new 
weaknesses. Activity in the 
periphery of the Euro zone was 
more depressed than expected, 
with signs of greater impact by 
this decline on the countries in 
the centre of the zone. In Japan, 
production contracted again in the 
third quarter.

In the U.S., growth will be above 
trend in the second half of the year 
and should reach 2% on average 
in 2013. Favourable conditions 
in the financial markets and the 
downturn in the housing market 
have improved household balance 
sheets and should lead to stronger 
growth in consumption in 2013. 
However, projections are based 
on the assumption that automatic 

HPS in the present economic situation
We approached the year 2012 with caution given the economic conditions 
and the pressure on the banking sector, also in terms of regulatory reforms 
on investment policies.

But we have made HPS an agile Group, able to adapt to this rapidly 
changing environment to take advantage of the sector's opportunities. 
By adapting our business strategy, diversifying our business models and 
enhancing our product offering we have managed to achieve significant 
business progress. We have in fact won new major contracts, we have 
penetrated new priority geographical areas, we have boosted and 
supported our existing clients in their transformation projects and we 
have initiated strategic business partnerships for long-term development 
contracts for HPS.

All these achievements allowed us to increase our global sales by 55% in 
2012.
     Martin Evans
     Global Sales Director
     HPS Solutions In the Euro zone, short-term 

prospects have been revised 
downward, though the progress 
of national adjustments and the 
strengthening of the response to 
the crisis across the European 
Union have reduced extreme risks 
and have improved financing 
conditions for peripheral countries. 
Activity is expected to contract by 
0.2% in 2013, instead of increasing 
by 0.2%. This is due to delays in 
the transmission of lower sovereign 
spreads and improved bank 
liquidity to private sector borrowing 
conditions, and the uncertainty 
that continues to surround the 
resolution of the crisis despite 
recent progress. In 2013, however, 
these brakes will begin to relax, 
provided that reforms to tackle the 
crisis continue to be implemented.

high rates that were observed 
in 2010-11. Economic support 
policies contributed in large 
part to the recent acceleration 
of activity in many of these 
countries. But the lack of activity 
in developed countries will weigh 
on external demand, as well as 
the terms of trade for countries 
that export commodities, given the 
assumption of a fall in commodity 
prices in 2013 in this Update. 
Furthermore, the possibilities 
of further easing of economic 
policy have been reduced, 
while bottlenecks in supply and 
the uncertainty of government 
policy have dampened growth 
in some countries (for example, 
Brazil and India). In sub-Saharan 
Africa, activity should remain 
robust: a rebound in production 
in Nigeria after disruptions due to 
flooding should contribute to an 
acceleration of the overall growth 
in the region in 2013.

Under these conditions, 
projections imply that global 
growth will pick up steadily in 2013 
to a 3.5% annualized rate, a slight 
improvement over 2012. A further 
acceleration to 4.1% in 2014, 
assuming that the recovery is firmly 
established in the Euro area.

Japan's short-term growth 
prospects have not been revised 
downward despite the return of the 
recession. Activity is expected to 
grow by 1.2% in 2013, a rate more 
or less unchanged compared with 
October. The recession should 
be of short duration, because the 
effects of temporary factors, such 
as subsidies for automobiles and 
disruption of trade with China will 
ease. An extensive programme of 
fiscal stimulus and a further easing 
of monetary policy, combined with 
a recovery in external demand 
and a weakening of the yen, will 
invigorate growth at least in the 
short term.

In emerging and developing 
countries, growth is expected 
to rise to 5.5 per cent in 2013. 
However, it is not likely to achieve 
the 

Graph 1. Global GDP growth
(In percent; from one quarter to another; annualized)

Emerging and
developing countries

World

Advanced countries
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Key figures
for 2012

Accomplishments
& Highlights

2011 2012 Variations

Revenus 250	  143	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   281	  606	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   12,6%
Charges	  d'exploitation (261	  248)	   (254	  720)	   -‐2,5%
Résultat	  d'exploitation (11	  105)	   26	  886	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   NS
Marge -‐4,4% 9,5%

Résultat	  Net (47	  527)	   18	  217	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   NS
Marge -‐19,0% 6,5%

Cash	  flow	  net (4	  291)	   68	  015	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   NS
Cash	  flow	  opérationnel 8	  400	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   77	  327	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   NS

Résultat	  par	  action (67,5)	   25,9	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Extrait	  des	  états	  financiers	  consolidés

All amounts are in thousands of Durhams, except earnings per share  
in Durhams.

Despite an economic environment 
that is still troubled, the Group 
experienced a rebound in its 
performance in 2012 with organic 
growth of its activities of 12.6% 
and a positive momentum on the 
whole of its geographical areas. 
Payment activities recorded strong 
growth (+18%), while services 
brought by ACPQualife activities 
remained stable in a difficult 
economic context in France.

As such, 2012 posted a strong 
business recovery with a very 
strong increase in activity related 
to acquisition of new customers 
(+42%) and sales to our existing 
customers (+29%).

PowerCARD projects 
Activity in 2012 was very strong, 
both in terms of business 
performance and in terms of 
operational performance and 
deployment of projects. Thus, the 
increase by 42 per cent over 2011 
is explained by a sharp increase in 
orders (107%) and the deployment 
of major projects, especially in the 
European market.

2012 was especially marked by:

• A new contract in Mali with the 
Banque Commerciale du Sahel 
(BCS). This new contract is the 
3rd for HPS in Mali, after the 
Banque du Développement du 
Mali (BDM) and the Banque 
Nationale de Développement 
Agricole (BNDA). The BCS, 
owned by Libya Arab Foreign 
Bank, is involved in financing 
various sectors of the Malian 
economy (construction, 
tourism, agriculture, etc.)

Over the year, the Group's 
operating margin was 26.9 million 
Durhams, representing a margin 
rate of 9.5%.

This performance particularly 
reflects adaptation of accounting 
methods for recognition of 
licensing revenue that is smoothed 
over the duration of projects 
and also recorded the signing 
of contracts. Smoothing license 
revenues over the duration of  
projects resulted in a report of 
income and operating profit of 
10 million Durhams over the next 
few years, impacting the 2012 
operating margin by 3.1% base 
points. 

The Group also continued efforts 
to streamline expenses, resulted 
in a reduction of 2.5% in operating 
expenses.

• A new contract in Jordan with 
Jordan Islamic Bank (JIB). JIB is 
one of the largest Islamic banks 
of the region and globally. In 
2011, it was ranked by Global 
Finance Magazine as the best 
Islamic Bank in Jordan for the 
third consecutive year and 
the best Islamic retail bank 
in the world for the second 
consecutive year.

• A new contract in Bangladesh 
with Eastern Limited Bank 
(EBL). With this new contract, 
the Group continues its 
development in Asia Pacific 
with a new very promising 
market which takes full 
advantage of the strong 
regional economic dynamics. 
With 76 microfinance 
institutions and over 730 million 
USD in loans, Bangladesh is 
also a world leader in this area. 

• A new contract with a major 
financial institution Morocco for 
the implementation of the  
PowerCARD-Mobile solution. 
The objective of this project will 
be to enable Moroccan holders 
to perform all conventional 
mobile-banking transactions 

The outsourcing strategy 
continued to be implemented, to 
optimize the Group's flexibility. 
This strategy enabled reducing the 
workforce by 10% in 2012 and the 
permanent payroll by 6.5%. 

Finally, the Group maintained 
ongoing efforts to reduce its 
working capital, including by 
reducing the average time for 
implementation of projects and 
the average time for customer 
payment. These results were 
possible due to the proximity 
of regional entities and their full 
operational autonomy. These 
efforts enabled reaching a cash 
flow from operations of 77.3 million 
Durhams and a net cash net 
flow of 68 million Durhams. The 
use of cash consisted mainly of 
repayment of the financing debt by 
8 million Durhams.

The consequence of this 
performance is the reduction of 
financial interest costs and in the 
financial result by 26%.

It had the result of a net income 
for the Group of 25.9 Durhams 
per share, or a PER of 9.65 in 
December 31, 2012.

and payment transactions 
through the mobile payment 
channel.

• A new contract with a European 
financial institution. With this 
new contract, the Group is 
continuing its international 
development and consolidating 
its presence on the European 
market. This contract will be 
realized through providing the 
comprehensive PowerCARD 
solution: Card issuance, 
merchant acquisition, 
management of electronic 
payment terminals and 
automated teller machines 
and management of interfaces 
with the Visa and MasterCard 
systems.

EXCERPT FROM THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANALYTICAL INFORMATION

2012 2011 Variations 
Nature Africa Americas Asia Europe Middle East Group Group

Payment activity  64 627 429    14 215 420    10 073 120    64 255 380    53 430 707    206 602 056    174 600 829   18,3%
PowerCARD projects  9 108 255    7 062 320    4 572 057    49 903 726    5 002 848    75 649 206    53 189 172   42,2%
Cross-selling  28 763 753    2 552 425    3 479 402    7 800 875    15 035 448    57 631 904    44 558 403   29,3%
Maintenance  21 126 532    3 027 914    1 518 669    5 706 490    28 454 710    59 834 317    53 733 265   11,4%
Licence extensions  2 453 000    124 832    -  130 487    2 013 324    4 721 643    6 406 578   -26,3%
ASP  1 446 000    -  -  -  -  1 446 000    1 606 842   -10,0%
Resales  -  -  -  -  -   -  2 097 923   N/A
Chargebacks  1 729 890    1 447 928    502 991    713 802    2 924 377    7 318 987    13 008 647   -43,7%

Service activity  -  -  -  60 845 112    -  60 845 112    60 431 718   0,7%

Other income  6 291 219    -  66 056    5 452 098    2 349 534    14 158 906    15 110 247   -6,3%

Group  70 918 648    14 215 420    10 139 176    130 552 590    55 780 240    281 606 074    250 142 794   12,6%
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• A new contract with a major 
processing player in France. 
This contract consists of an 
extension to the PowerCARD 
license currently in operation by 
the processor, thus confirming 
its confidence in the HPS 
platform technology. At the 
centre of the processor's 
activity, in 2011 the 
PowerCARD platform managed 
more than 13 million cards, 
30,000 electronic payment 
terminals, and processed 210 
million payment and withdrawal 
transactions and 160 million 
online transactions.

Operating Expenses 
At the end of 2012, operating 
expenses amounted to 255 million 
Durhams, down 2.5% from the 
previous year.

HPS continues its work of 
analysis and revision of the rules 
to optimize certain operating 
expenses (cost of travel expenses, 
cost of telecoms, etc.). In 2012 
these efforts resulted in containing 
external costs at 21% of revenues.

In 2012, external costs changed 
with the costs of consulting and 
strategic support.

In addition, HPS continues 
to invest in marketing effort 
with increased participation in 
the sector's major events and 
exhibitions.

Outsourcing costs are down 
from 2011 (-24%) mainly due 
to the slowdown in activity of 
ACPQualife. 

With regards to human 
resources, HPS has undertaken 
a rationalization of its workforce 
through cessation of the Services 
activity outside France. The 
Group believes that the market 
is currently declining due to the 
economic crisis and budget 
cuts decided by customers. The 
Group has therefore reduced its 
workforce by 10%, generating 
exceptional restructuring expenses 
of 5.7 million Durhams for the 
2012 financial year. However, 
this optimization will reduce the 
Group's payroll by 10 million 
Durhams per year over a full year, 
from 2013.

The foreign exchange 
market 
The Durham/dollar parity changed 
positively in the first six months, 
allowing HPS to produce earnings 
from positive currency fluctuations 
of major currencies.

The second six months saw a 
rebalancing of major currencies 

Cross-selling
HPS' recurring revenues have 
been marked by strong growth 
in our clients' activity, reflected 
by a significant increase in sales 
in terms of new applications with 
78.9 MDH in 2012 compared to 55 
MDH in 2011 (+43%).

These sales were especially 
driven by significant demand for 
regulatory projects (EMV/PCI), 
sales of new modules, and on-site 
assistance duties.

The method for accounting for new 
applications was also adapted in 
2012 to take into account projects 
progress, rather than invoicing. 
This adaptation had little effect 
on the amounts recorded in 
production.

At end of 2012, production in 
terms of new orders recorded an 
increase of 30%, at 57, 6 million 
Durhams, compared to 44.6 million 
Durhams in 2011.

Maintenance
Maintenance activity increased 
by 11.4 % in 2012 to reach 59.8 
million Durhams, as a result of 
new clients under maintenance 
contracts. The main new 
customers for maintenance during 
2012 were American Express 
Middle East for its 1st phase, 
Embratec in Brazil and BSSIC 
(Banque Sahelo Saharienne 
pour l’Industrie et le Commerce) 
in Libya. Clients taking out 
maintenance contracts in 2012 
generated additional annual 
turnover of 6 million Durhams.

At end of 2012, 20% of existing 
customers, still in phase of project 
deployment, were not yet in the 
maintenance phase. These clients 
represent additional potential of 15 
million MAD in maintenance sales, 
a growth of nearly 25% by 2015 
(excluding new customers).

back to parity level equivalent to 
that of the beginning of fiscal year, 
leading to a neutral impact on the 
accounts by year-end.

At the beginning of the year, and in 
accordance with the adopted plan 
of action, HPS conducted a study 
on the exchange risk management 
strategy, whose main objectives 
are:

- to limit the impact of currency 
fluctuations,

- to organize management closer 
to the identified risk,

- and to control the risks taken. 

Given the expertise required and 
the innovation of the business and 
foreign exchange risk management 
products on the local market, it 
was initially decided to outsource 
this function to a specialized 
firm, whose objectives are to 
continuously analyze exposure 
risk and be the interface with the 
trading floors to offer appropriate 
products to the Group's financial 
management. A management 
contract was signed with the MPE 
finance company based in France.

PowerCARD certified PCI-DSS in Brazil
ITS, the Embratec electronic payment platform in Brazil, has been certified PCI-
DSS. PCI-DSS is a standard for credit card data protection and fraud prevention.

2011 2012 Variations

Achats	  consommés 33	  020	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   25	  051	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐24,1%
Charges	  externes 54	  332	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   59	  812	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   10,1%
Charges	  de	  personnel 140	  759	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   141	  568	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   0,6%
Autres	  charges	  d'exploitation 6	  966	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   995	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐85,7%
Impôts	  et	  taxes 6	  640	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   8	  623	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   29,9%
Dotations	  d'exploitation 19	  531	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   18	  670	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐4,4%

Charges	  d'exploitation 261	  248	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   254	  720	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐2,5%

Extrait	  des	  états	  financiers	  consolidésEXCERPT FROM THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Activities
in Research & Development

Subsidiaries and 
Affiliates

Our industry is marked by rapid 
change, due to technological 
developments and regulatory 
changes in the industry, and 
we have to face competitors 
that are larger than us and 
have significantly greater 
financial resources . To compete 
successfully, we have to maintain 
an ongoing R&D effort. We 
need to continually improve our 
existing products and develop 
new products in response to 
anticipated technological and 
regulatory changes. For this, we 
must be able to anticipate our 
customers' and the market's future 
needs.

To achieve this we work closely 
with our clients and key industry 
players to understand the 
industry's current and future 
requirements.

We arrange user group meetings 
at regular intervals. These Users' 
Meetings help us reinforce or 
adapt our Product Strategy and 
development plans. 

Activity in 2012
The ACPQUALIFE company is 
organized around two lines of 
activity:

- IT services business for French 
customers in the fields of Test, 
Development and Production,

- The electronic payment for the 
HPS group and its international 
clients, with research and 
development activities, 
integration and consulting 
activities in marketing and 
management.

The management and control 
are provided by 2 branches with 

the support of 
the administrative 
functions that are 
supervised by the 
HPS group and 
shared between the 
2 lines of activity.

We also work with hardware 
manufacturers, such as Wincor-
Nixdorf, Diebold and NCR, 
to ensure compatibility of 
our solutions with the latest 
technologies.

We work with organizations such 
as MasterCard, VISA or IFX, to 
ensure our products comply with 
current regulations and prepare for 
future regulations.

Finally, we work with 
manufacturers and vendors, like 
HP, IBM, and Oracle, to ensure 
and provide compatibility with 
operating systems and new 
generations of servers.

We are supported in the choices 
we make year after year, by 
position PowerCARD holds, in 
recent Gartner studies. In its last 
three studies on our sector, the 
Gartner firm placed PowerCARD 
among the first solutions on the 
market .

In 2012, the IT services business 
had activity contrasted with strong 
growth (15%) in the first half of 
the year followed by a decline in 
activity in the second half (3 million 
Euro in the first half compared to 
2.5 million Euros in the second 
half). In the 2nd half of the year, 
particularly in the last 2 months 
of the year, the service activity 
suffered from budget cuts of its 
customers, primarily composed of 
large French companies, with the 
result of overall activity in 2012 that 
was substantially at the same level 
as that of 2011.

The main achievements of the year 
2012 consisted of:

- The definition and 
implementation of the entire 
test strategy of a large financial 
institution

- Development, maintenance and 
qualification of solutions in the 
rail transport sector

- The renewal and enlargement 
of Fafiec listings for software 
qualification training

- Access to new national listings 
acquired or being finalized 
(Crédit Agricole Group, AXA, 

In 2012, the Group continued its 
Research and Development efforts 
and devoted over 14,000 man-
days, to advancing and developing 
its PowerCARD product, 
representing over 20 million 
Durhams in costs of dedicated 
teams. Major achievements in 
2012:

- Development of Bank Card 
settlement in France

- PA-DSS certification for 
PowerCARD version 2.6

- New J2EE architecture 

- New user interface

- Integration of web services

- Integration of an ETL 

- Development of new solutions: 
PowerCARD-eSecure and 
PowerCARD-eCommerce.

- Support for cardless 
transactions. 

Orange,...)

- Expansion of existing 
references for other services.

Payment activity was consistent 
with the budgetary objectives 
which provided a slight decrease 
in production due mainly to 
a reduction in research and 
development investment on 
the PowerCARD-Webpublisher 
product which had matured. The 
decrease in R&D activity on this 
product was offset in part by 
supporting the development of 
two new products, PowerCARD-
eSecure and PowerCARD-
eCommerce, for the HPS group.

Post closing events
None

Research and Development

Production stopped on the 
exercise is €158,319 for an 
allocation for depreciation of 
€229,285.

Benchmark on the HP platform

After tests conducted in 2010 in the IBM laboratories in France, HPS conducted new 
performance tests in 2012 in partnership with HP.
In a series of rigorous tests conducted over five weeks at the European HP Performance 
Centre on the latest HP Superdome2 servers, the PowerCARD solution processed up 
to 100 million accounts with peaks of authorizations at 3,000 transactions per second 
for a maximum of 5,000 simultaneous users.
These tests clearly demonstrated that the reliability, availability and scalability necessary 
for a card processing centre can be obtained by using the PowerCARD solution on HP-
UX servers.

2011 2012 Variations

Produits	  d'exploitation 88	  238	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   84	  567	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐4,2%
Charges	  d'exploitation (86	  465)	   (83	  464)	   -‐3,5%

Résultat	  d'exploitation 1	  773	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   1	  104	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐37,7%

Résultat	  Financier (53)	   348	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐752,7%
Résultat	  non	  courant (31)	   (315)	   900,0%

Résultat	  avant	  impôt 1	  688	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   1	  137	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐32,6%

Impôt	  sur	  le	  résultat 687	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   (179)	   -‐126,0%

Résultat	  Net 2	  375	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   959	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐59,6%

ACP	  QualifeACP QUALIFE
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Forecast Developments 
and Prospects

Despite conditions, ACPQualife 
provides superior growth at 15% 
for the IT services industry. To 
achieve this, management plans:

- to capitalize on references by 
major accounts in 2012, such 
as the Group Crédit Agricole, 

- to build the sales force, 
especially in the Paris region,

- to renew investment in France 
in the second half of 2013.

For the Payment activity, stability 
of the activity for the HPS group is 
planned and a growth in licensing 
revenues for Vision.

Operating earnings stood at € 
99,814 Euros compared to 157,605 
Euros for the previous year, a 
change of -36.67 %. 

Wages and salaries amounted 
to €2,721,700 compared to 
€2,971,032 for the previous fiscal 
year, a change of -8.39%.

The amount for wages and salaries 
amounted to € 1,270,342 Euros 
compared to € 1,390,997Euros 
for the previous year, a change of 
-8.67 %.

Given earnings of €31,474 (-€4,738 
in 2011), adjusted earnings for 
the year amounted to €131,288 
compared to €152,867 in 2011, 
representing a change of -14.12%.

Given the above items and:

- exceptional earnings of 
-€28,448 compared to -€2,729 
in 2011, 

- income tax of €16,148 
compared to a negative 
expense of -€95,867 in 2011,

- employee earnings participation 
of nil compared to €34,862 
participation in 2011,

Earnings for the year result in a 
profit of €86,691 compared to 
earnings of €211,004 in 2011, 
which is a change of -58,91%.

At December 31, 2012, the total 
assets of the Company amounted 
to €5,873,645 compared to 
€6,215,623 for the previous year, a 
change of -5.50%.

Activity in 2012
HPS Europe is a Limited Company 
(Société Anonyme) under French 
law, with capital of 300,000 
Euros, created in December 
2008 by HPS. The relationship 
between HPS and its subsidiary 
HPS Europe is governed by a 
distribution contract, under which 
HPS Europe acts as a distributor 
of HPS' solutions and services 
throughout the European market. 
The role of HPS Europe consists of 
prospecting the European market, 
and promotion and sales of HPS' 
solutions and services. Revenues 
from HPS Europe consist of 
commissions on sales contracted 
and maintenance fees that result.

2012 was marked mainly by the 
active role played by HPS Europe 
in European and American account 
management including Monext and 
Cedicam in France and Embratec 
in Brazil. 

In addition, HPS Europe provided 
promotional activities and 
prospecting on the European and 
American markets through its 
participation in major international 
events in its region.

Activity in 2012 recorded growth 
of 38%, due in particular to new 
projects concluded in 2012 on the 
European market.

Operating expenses also rose by 
39%, mainly due to the costs of 
exceptional fees for an amount 
of 200,000 Euros, related to 
contractual trade negotiations in 
2012.

It shows an increase in operating 
earnings of 22%. Net earnings was 
impacted by provisions for risks 
and expenses of 30,000 Euros.

HPS exhibited at Cartes & 
IDentification 2012 trade show, 
held from November 6 to 8, 
2012, in the Paris-Nord Villepinte 
Exhibition Centre.
This 27th show had as its main 
theme security and mobile 
payment. During this global forum 
that over 3 days brought together 
some 430 exhibitors and 20,000 
visitors from 150 countries, HPS 
presented its PowerCARD-Mobile 
solution. Adaptable to a variety of 
needs for performing a wide range 
of banking transactions (funds 
transfer, payment of instalments, 
etc..) and providing access to 
more value-added services (bill 
payments, online shopping etc.), 
this solution aroused great interest 
by visitors.
During these 3 days, HPS has 
also exhibited its entire range 
of innovative solutions and 
in particular the version 3 of 
PowerCARD and PowerCARD-
Webpublisher, PowerCARD-
eSecure and PowerCARD-
eCommerce solutions.
This event was for HPS, very much 
open to the international market, a 
showcase to present its innovative 
solutions and a space for meeting 
its key customers and business 
partners.

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

None

Reverse takeover

None

Companies controlled

None

Economic and Financial 
Results

Turnover amounted to € 7,455,355 
(€ 1,952,497 including export) 
compared to € 7,623,996 (€ 
1,908,374 including export) in 
2011, a decrease of 2.21%.The 
total operating income amounted 
to € 7,648,251 (including € 158,319 
in capitalized production costs in 
R&D) compared to € 7,840,684 
(including € 316,492 of R&D costs) 
for the previous financial year, a 
-2.45% change.

Operating earnings for the year 
amounted to 7,548,438 Euros 
compared to 7,683,079 Euros for 
the previous year, a change of 
-1.75 %.

2011 2012 Variations

Produits	  d'exploitation 8	  655	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   11	  937	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   37,9%
Charges	  d'exploitation (8	  013)	   (11	  156)	   39,2%

Résultat	  d'exploitation 642	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   781	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   21,7%

Résultat	  Financier (6)	   -‐ N/A
Résultat	  non	  courant (1)	   (334)	   N/S

Résultat	  avant	  impôt 635	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   447	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐29,6%

Impôt	  sur	  le	  résultat (214)	   (297)	   38,8%

Résultat	  Net 422	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   150	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   -‐64,3%

HPS	  EUROPE
HPS at the  

Cartes 2012 in Paris

HPS EUROPE
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Millier	  BHD 2011 2012 Variations

Produits	  d'exploitation 1	  604	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   1	  762	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   9,9%
Charges	  d'exploitation (1	  448)	   (1	  426)	   -‐1,5%

Résultat	  d'exploitation 156	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   337	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   115,8%

Résultat	  Net 156	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   337	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   115,8%

Global	  Payment	  Services

Activity in 2012

HPS has a 25% stake in Global 
Payment Services(GPS). GPS is 
a limited liability company, based 
in Bahrain. Created in 2005, GPS 
started commercial operations 
in October of 2006. Its activities 
consist of providing payment 
solutions in ASP 

The electronic payment industry, 
as with the global environment, 
is undergoing major changes. It 
is clear that comprehensive and 
complex forces are in motion, and 
that only the most dynamic and 
flexible companies can grow in this 
new world.

Facing technological and 
regulatory upheavals, the sector's 
players are multiplying strategic 
transaction at the same time that 
the development of new payment 
channels, such as e-payment 
and e-commerce, is arousing 
the appetite of new entrants and 
cultivating the race for leadership 
between banks, technology 
companies and telecom operators.

A reflection of these profound 
changes, the two major global 
payment networks, MasterCard 
and Visa, are engaging in strategic 
acquisitions. The stated objectives 
of these two industry giants is to 
extend the payment value chain 
to offer outsourcing services 
and position themselves in 
e-commerce.

The development of outsourcing 
is a market trend, confirmed by 
Gartner. It estimated that the global 
market for SaaS will generate 
revenues of $ 14.5 billion USD in 
2012, an increase of 18% from 
2011. Gartner adds that the global 
SaaS market could reach $ 22.1 
billion USD by 2015.

Activity in 2012

To expand its ASP offering, in 2008 
HPS created the ICPS Company 
in partnership with Mauritius 
Commercial Bank. HPS has a 
20% stake. ICPS aims to be a 
major player in processing for the 
Indian Ocean region. The company 
offers outsourcing of a range of 
services covering the whole chain 
of electronic payment processing. 
ICPS also established a centre for 
card personalization.

mode, as well as personalization of 
cards for the Middle East region. 
Its financial statements which 
closed on December 31, 2012, and 
were audited by Ernst & Young, 
showed profits of 337,000 Bahraini 
Durhams, an increase of 115 %..

2012 revenues totalled 1,762,000 
BHD, an increase of 10 % over 
2011.

Our diversification strategy 
consisting of offering new business 
models is part of our long term 
vision. Since 2005, HPS began 
to develop a comprehensive 
processing range, based on 
several regional hubs. After the 
first two platforms in the Middle 
East and Africa, HPS continued 
to enhance its offering through 
new partnerships to develop 
new platforms on our priority 
regions. HPS also has the desire 
to diversify its business model 
and address the transactional 
model to ensure significant 
growth in repeating revenue. The 
objective is to convert 20% of 
payment transaction revenue into a 
transaction model within 5 years.

It is also clear that mobile payment 
is booming worldwide, and 
developing the system that will 
be required is a race between 
a multitude of players including 
banks, telecom companies and 
technology The rapid expansion of 
mobile phone technology means 
that the number of users exceeds 
the number of people with access 
to bank accounts in several 
countries. This new channel 
will not only reduce the cost of 
financial transactions but will also 
allow new entrants to become 
players in the financial sector. 

For several years, HPS has 
invested heavily to develop 
innovative solutions to exploit 
mobile technology in the payment 
chain. In 2003, our first solution 
for telecom operators was 

Operational startup of ICPS took 
place during 2009. Projects already 
in production include Tanzania's 
CRBD Bank, the Chinese CUP 
card acceptance in Mauritius, 
Madagascar MCB for the bearer 
management and merchant 
management, Ghana Commercial 
Bank for ATM management and 
card personalization, CFB Meeting 
for card personalization and 
Mauritius Commercial Bank for 
credit card management.

Activity in 2012 continued to be 
strong, with growth of almost 25%.

This increase is mainly due to the 
increase in processing revenues 
due to the increased volume of 
cards processed.

On the other hand, operating costs 
have remained stable because of 
the savings on the cost of postage.

The cost of equipment increased 
due to greater maintenance costs.

The result was net earnings of 337 
KBHD, 50% over initial estimates.

already operational and HPS has 
continued ever since to enrich 
and expand its mobile offering 
so that today it has a solution 
capable of meeting the tomorrow's 
challenges.

All these changes in the industry 
naturally lead to their own set 
of challenges and risks, but the 
fact remains that the new needs 
created by these changes are 
mostly new opportunities for 
market operators. 

With its wealth of 18 years of 
experience in global development 
of electronic payment, HPS has 
transformed in recent years to 
become one of the benchmark 
players.

In this context, we are today better 
equipped than ever to achieve our 
strategic objective to become the 
leader in this evolving field.This year was marked by the 

acquisition of a new client, Bank 
of Africa - Madagascar, whose 
business management businesses 
will be handled by the platform 
ICPS.

Operational activity remained very 
focused on the migration of MCB 
group portfolios. 
 

The dynamic display of activity, 
combined with good cost control, 
allowed ICPS to obtain its first 
profits in 2012.

Outlook

Post closing events

None

GLOBAL PAYMENT SERVICES

Millier	  MUR 2011 2012 Variations

Produits	  d'exploitation 48	  916	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   60	  839	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   24,4%
Charges	  d'exploitation (50	  465)	   (56	  846)	   12,6%

Résultat	  d'exploitation (1	  549)	   3	  993	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   N/S

Résultat	  Net (2	  520)	   4	  401	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   N/S

International	  Card	  Payment	  ServicesINTERNATIONAL CARD PAYMENT SERVICES

(1) Exchange rate at 31/12/2012: 1 BHD = 22.481793 MAD
(2) Exchange rate at 31/12/2012: 1 BHD = 0.273547 MAD

Thousands BHD(1)

Operating revenues
Operating Expenses

Operating Earnings

Net earnings 

Thousands MUR

Thousands BHD(2)

Operating revenues
Operating Expenses

Operating Earnings

Net earnings 

Thousands MUR
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Financial Report
This financial report and the financial statements 
it contains are the responsibility of the Group's 
management. They were reviewed and approved by 
the Board of Directors.
The financial statements have been prepared 
according to rules and accounting standards 
applicable to Morocco.
As provided by the Circulars of the Ethics Council 
for Transferable Securities (Conseil Déontologique 
des Valeurs Mobilières), the Group's consolidated 
financial statements are presented in accordance 
with the methodology of the National Accounting 
Council (Conseil National de la Comptabilité) relating 
to consolidated accounts. The consolidation is based 
on individual accounts of the companies included 
in consolidation, after making adjustments prior to 
homogenization and consolidation.
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Corporate Financial Statements 2012

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS

NATurE
2012 2011

Gross Amort. and Provisions Net Net

ASSETS IN BAD DEBTS 1,965,860.75 1,588,718.45 377,142.30 637,103.34
Preliminary costs 370,233.10 222,139.86 148,093.24 222,139.86
Deferred expenses 1,595,627.65 1,366,578.59 229,049.06 414,963.48
Bond redemption premiums - - - -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18,354,540.85 16,638,025.83 1,716,515.02 2,240,809.89
Capital in research and development 13,560,538.03 13,560,538.03 - -
Patents, trademarks and similar rights and assets - - - -
Goodwill - - - -
Other intangible fixed assets 4,794,002.82 3,077,487.80 1,716,515.02 2,240,809.89
Tangible fixed assets in progress - - - -

FIXED ASSETS 17,831,802.46 10,629,978.93 7,201,823.53 9,273,562.32
Land - - - -
Buildings - - - -
Plant, machinery and equipment 6,178,614.93 5,404,286.17 774,328.76 1,717,856.72
Transportation equipment 1,362,756.60 665,050.05 697,706.55 806,983.08
Furniture, office equipment and fittings 10,290,430.93 4,560,642.71 5,729,788.22 6,748,722.52
Other tangible fixed assets - - - -
Tangible fixed assets in progress - - - -

FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS 80,324,907.05 1,200,000.00 79,124,907.05 79,124,907.05
Long term loans - - - -
Other financial claims  634,527.76 - 634,527.76 634,527.76
equity shares 79,690,379.29 1,200,000.00 78,490,379.29 78,490,379.29
Other investments - - - -

EXCHANGE ADJuSTMENTS - ASSETS - - - -
Decrease in non-performing loans - - - -
Increase in financial debts - - - -

FIXED ASSETS 118,477,111.11 30,056,723.21 88,420,387.90 91,276,382.60

INVENTOrY 38,523,713.30 10,722,503.00 27,801,210.30 41,829,552.12
Finished goods 43,205.30 - 43,205.30 43,205.30
Consumable materials and supplies - - - -
Products in progress 38,480,508.00 10,722,503.00 27,758,005.00 41,786,346.82
Intermediates products - - - -
Finished Products - - - -

CurrENT rECEIVABLES 151,016,817.98 8,411,180.02 142,605,637.96 162,729,319.94
Supplier receivables, advances and deposits 144,950.00 140,000.00 4,950.00 37,800.00
Accounts receivable 132,754,727.27 8,271,180.02 124,483,547.25 147,715,268.88
Staffing 698,755.57 - 698,755.57 596,969.30
State and other debtors 13,563,155.50 - 13,563,155.50 13,369,194.52
Related accounts - - - -
Other debtors 2,230,598.00 - 2,230,598.00 11,999.91
Clearing accounts - Assets 1,624,631.64 - 1,624,631.64 998,087.33

INVESTMENT SECurITIES - - - -
FOrEIGN EXCHANGE ADJuSTMENTS - ASSETS 1,086,289.83 - 1,086,289.83 562,401.50

CurrENT ASSETS 190,626,821.11 19,133,683.02 171,493,138.09 205,121,273.56

CASH - ASSET 16,344,276.32 - 16,344,276.32 17,248,193.92
Cheques and securities in transit - - - -
Banks, TG and CCP 16,332,864.29 - 16,332,864.29 17,219,162.49
Cash and letters of credit 11,412.03 - 11,412.03 29,031.43

TOTAL ASSETS 325,448,208.54 49,190,406.23 276,257,802.31 313,645,850.08

BALANCE SHEET - LIABILITIES
NATurE 2012 2011

EQuITY 151,358,257.61 130,385,848.38
Share or owner's capital 70,359,900.00 70,359,900.00
Less: shareholders, shares subscribed not called - -
Shares called - -
but paid........ - -
Issue, merger, contribution premium 31,623,410.00 31,623,410.00
Revaluation variances - -
Statutory reserve 7,035,990.00 7,035,990.00
Other reserves - -
Carried forward  21,366,548.38 68,452,867.57
Net earnings pending allocation - -
Net earnings for the year 20,972,409.23 -47,086,319.19

ALLIED EQuITY                                           - -
Investment subsidy - -
Statutory provisions - -

FINANCING DEBTS    36,951,242.84 44,730,451.80
Bonds - -
Other financing debts 36,951,242.84 44,730,451.80

LONG TErM PrOVISION FOr CONTINGENCIES - -
Provision for risks - -
Provision for expenses - -

FOrEIGN EXCHANGE ADJuSTMENTS - LIABILITIES  - -
Increase in long-term loans - -
Decrease in financing debts - -

LONG TErM LIABILITIES 188,309,500.45 175,116,300.18

DEBTS - CurrENT LIABILITIES  79,304,386.67 61,440,389.50
Accounts receivable 48,174,956.28 40,083,270.55
Customer payables, advances and deposits 120,256.17 2,354,671.97
Staffing 11,122,599.81 8,817,831.18
Social security 2,926,969.46 3,229,717.00
State 2,566,605.24 3,261,542.01
Related accounts - -
Others creditors 83,291.00 90,133.52
Clearing accounts - Liabilities 14,309,708.71 3,603,223.27

OTHEr PrOVISIONS FOr CONTINGENCIES 3,413,045.02 2,594,922.66
FOrEIGN EXCHANGE ADJuSTMENTS - LIABILITIES 305,811.66 2,209,694.65

CurrENT LIABILITIES 83,023,243.35 66,245,006.81

CASH - LIABILITY 4,925,058.51 72,284,543.09
Discount credits - -
Cash credits - -
Banks (overdrafts) 4,925,058.51 72,284,543.09

TOTAL LIABILITIES 276,257,802.31 313,645,850.08
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STATEMENT OF rEVENuES AND EXPENSES 
TYPE 2012 2011

OPErATING rEVENuE 219,838,214.09 187,734,362.69
Sales of goods (in the State) - 256,613.10
Sales of goods and services performed 215,812,844.74 202,320,844.16
Sales turnover 215,812,844.74 202,577,457.26

Change in product inventories -9,649,567.38 -28,611,703.37
Fixed assets produced for own use - -
Operating subsidies 1,795,697.79 1,619,670.42
Other Operating Revenues - -
Adjustments to operating expenses and deferrals 11,879,238.94 12,148,938.38

OPErATING EXPENSES 195,906,074.55 201,041,629.91
Cost of Goods Sold - 247,033.10
Purchases consumed of materials and supplies 28,447,196.37 30,519,815.41
Other external expenses 51,801,989.23 53,902,704.32
Taxes and duties 6,467,007.69 5,649,256.82
Staffing costs 94,859,005.30 89,347,207.26
Other Operating Expenses 931,986.34 6,966,525.43
Operating allowances 13,398,889.62 14,409,087.57

OPErATING EArNINGS 23,932,139.54 -13,307,267.22

Financial Earnings 6,338,739.68 5,772,354.61
Earnings from equities and other securities - 8,461.34
Foreign exchange gains 5,776,338.18 4,657,087.39
Interest and other financial revenues - -
Write-offs of financial transfers of charges 562,401.50 1,106,805.88

FINANCIAL EXPENSES 9,312,030.37 12,678,165.31
Interest Expenses 3,997,817.62 6,541,775.97
Exchange rate losses 3,477,155.24 5,312,388.88
Other financial expenses 750,767.68 261,598.96
Financial Allowances 1,086,289.83 562,401.50

FINANCIAL EArNINGS  -2,973,290.69 -6,905,810.70

EArNINGS 20,958,848.85 -20,213,077.92

NON-CurrENT EArNINGS 1,548,170.45 688,663.08
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 1,008,269.00 93,412.00
Balancing subsidies - -
Reversals of investment subsidies - -
Other non-current earnings 539,901.45 595,251.08
Reversals of non-current transfers of charges - -

NON-CurrENT EXPENSES 680,256.07 26,693,694.35
Net value of amortization of
assets sold (withdrawal) 583,192.40 -
Subsidies received - -
Other non-current expenses 97,063.67 26,693,694.35
Non-current allowances for depreciation and provisions. - -

NON-CurrENT EArNINGS 867,914.38 -26,005,031.27

EArNINGS BEFOrE TAX 21,826,763.23 -46,218,109.19

Income taxes on earnings 854,354.00 868,210.00

NET EARNINGS 20,972,409.23 -47,086,319.19

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT BALANCES
TYPE 2012 2011

GrOSS SALES IN THE STATE - 9,580.00

Sales of goods (in the State)  -      256,613.10   

Cost of Goods Sold  -      247,033.10   

PrODuCTION OF THE YEAr 206,163,277.36 173,709,140.79

Sales of goods and services performed 215,812,844.74 202,320,844.16

Inventory change -9,649,567.38 -28,611,703.37

Fixed assets produced for own use  -      -     

CONSuMPTION FOr THE YEAr 80,249,185.60 84,422,519.73

Purchases consumed of materials and supplies 28,447,196.37 30,519,815.41

Other external expenses 51,801,989.23 53,902,704.32

VALuE ADDED 125,914,091.76 89,296,201.06

Operating subsidies 1,795,697.79 1,619,670.42

Taxes and duties 6,467,007.69 5,649,256.82

Staffing costs 94,859,005.30 89,347,207.26

EBITDA or IBE  26,383,776.56   -4,080,592.60   

Other Operating Revenues  -      -     

Other Operating Expenses 931,986.34 6,966,525.43

Reversals to operating expenses, transfers of charges 11,879,238.94 12,148,938.38

Operating allowances 13,398,889.62 14,409,087.57

OPErATING EArNINGS 23,932,139.54 -13,307,267.22

Financial Earnings -2,973,290.69 -6,905,810.70

EArNINGS 20,958,848.85 -20,213,077.92

Non-operating earnings 867,914.38 -26,005,031.27

Income taxes on earnings 854,354.00 868,210.00

NET EArNINGS FOr THE YEAr 20,972,409.23 -47,086,319.19

Operating allowances 3,445,557.85 3,828,218.14

Financial Allowances  -      -     

Non-current allowances  -      -     

Operating reversals  -     -

Financial reversals  -      -     

Non-current reversals  -      -     

Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 1,008,269.00 93,412.00

Net book value of depreciation of fixed assets sold (withdrawn) 583,192.40 -

CASH FLOW FrOM OPErATIONS (C.F.O.) 23,992,890.48 -43,351,513.05

Distribution of profits - 5,628,792.00

CASH FLOW 23,992,890.48 -48,980,305.05
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 2012 2011
Change

C Jobs D resources

FuNCTIONAL WOrKING CAPITAL 99,889,112.55 83,839,917.58  -      16,049,194.97   

Ongoing Financing 188,309,500.45 175,116,300.18  -      13,193,200.27   

Fixed Assets 88,420,387.90 91,276,382.60  -      2,855,994.70   

OVErALL FINANCING NEEDS 88,469,894.74 138,876,266.75  -      50,406,372.01   

Current Assets 171,493,138.09 205,121,273.56  -      33,628,135.47   

Current Liabilities 83,023,243.35 66,245,006.81  -      16,778,236.54   

NET CASH (ASSETS - LIABILITIES) 11,419,217.81 -55,036,349.17  66,455,566.98    -     

STAFF AND rESOurCES
2012 2011

Staffing resources Staffing resources

CASH FLOW  23,992,890.48   48,980,305.05   
Cash flow position  23,992,890.48   43,351,513.05   
- Distribution of profit  -      5,628,792.00   

DISPOSALS AND rEDuCTIONS OF FIXED ASSETS  1,008,269.00    93,412.00   
Disposals of intangible  fixed assets  -      -     
Disposals of intangible  assets     1,008,269.00    93,412.00   
Disposals of intangible  financial  -      -     
Recovery of non-performing loans  -      -     

INCrEASE IN EQuITY AND rELATED CAPITAL  -      -     
Capital increases, Contributions  -      -     
Investment subsidies  -      -     

rEPAYMENT OF FINANCING DEBTS  -      -     
Other financing debts     -      -     

TOTAL OF STABLE rESOurCES  25,001,159.48   48,980,305.05 93,412.00

ACQuISITIONS AND INCrEASES OF FIXED ASSETS  1,172,755.55    2,065,036.75    -     
Disposals of intangible  fixed assets  240,934.95    333,084.04   
Acquisitions of tangible fixed assets  931,820.60    1,723,349.71   
Acquisitions of financial fixed assets  -      8,603.00   
Increase in long-term loans  -      -     

rEPAYMENT OF EQuITY  -      -     
rEPAYMENT OF FINANCING DEBTS  7,779,208.96    7,798,081.58   
ASSETS IN BAD DEBTS  -      -     

TOTAL OF STABLE rESOurCES   8,951,964.51    -      9,863,118.33    -     

CHANGE IN OVErALL FINANCING NEEDS  -      50,406,372.01    -      57,799,916.18   
CHANGE IN CASH  66,455,566.98    -      -      950,095.20   

GENErAL TOTAL  75,407,531.49    75,407,531.49   58,843,423.38 58,843,423.38

STATEMENT OF WAIVErS

NATurE OF WAIVErS WAIVEr JuSTIFICATION
INFLuENCE OF EXCEPTIONS ON 

ASSETS, FINANCIAL POSITION AND 
EArNINGS

Exceptions to Fundamental Accounting Principles  NIL NIL

Exceptions to evaluation methods  NIL   NIL

Exceptions to the rules for preparation and
presentation of summary statements  NIL  NIL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN METHODS

NATurE OF CHANGES JuSTIFICATION OF CHANGE INFLuENCE ON ASSETS, FINANCIAL 
POSITION AND EArNINGS

Changes affecting methods of evaluation  NIL NIL

Changes affecting rules of presentation   NIL  NIL

STATEMENT OF SECurITIES

THIrD PArTY CrEDITOrS  
Or DEBTOrS

AMOuNT COVErED
BY SECurITY TYPE

DATE AND 
PLACE OF 

rEGISTrATION
PurPOSE 

NET BOOK VALuE OF 
SECurITY GIVEN
AT CLOSING DATE

Securities given: NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Securities received: NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

STATEMENT OF FIXED ASSETS OTHEr THAN FINANCIAL

TYPE

AMOuNT 
GrOSS AT 
STArT OF 

YEAr

INCrEASE DECrEASE
AMOuNT
GrOSS AT 

END OF YEArACQuISITION PrODuCTION TrANSFEr ASSIGNMENT WITHDrAWAL TrANSFEr

NIL-VALuE FIXED ASSETS 1,965,860.75 - - - - - - 1,965,860.75

Preliminary costs 370,233.10  -      -      -      -      -      -      370,233.10   
Deferred expenses 1,595,627.65  -      -      -      -      -      -      1,595,627.65   

Bond redemption premiums  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18,113,605.90 240,934.95 - - - - - 18,354,540.85

Capital in research and development 13,560,538.03  -      -      -      -      -      -     13,560,538.03
Patents, trademarks and similar rights and assets  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Goodwill  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Other intangible fixed assets 4,553,067.87 240,934.95  -      -      -      -      -     4,794,002.82

Other outstanding intangible fixed assets -  -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

FIXED ASSETS 17,493,731.59 931,820.60  -      -     593,749.73  -     - 17,831,802.46

Land  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     
Buildings and fixtures  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Plant, machinery and equipment 6,020,724.78 157,890.15  -      -      -      -     6,178,614.93

Rolling Stock 1,216,887.54 739,618.79  -      -     593,749.73  -      -     1,362,756.60

Furniture, office equipment and fittings 10,256,119.27 34,311.66  -      -      -      -      -     10,290,430.93

Other tangible fixed assets  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Tangible fixed assets in progress  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     
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STATEMENT OF CLAIMS

CLAIMS AMOuNT

ANALYSIS BY DuE DATE OTHErS ANALYSES

MOrE THAN 
ONE YEAr

LESS THAN  
ONE YEAr

DuE AND
NOT 

rECOVErED

AMOuNT IN 
FOrEIGN 

CurrENCY

AMOuNTS TO 
STATE

AND PuBLIC 
BODIES

AMOuNTS 
ON rELATED 
COMPANIES

AMOuNTS 
rEPrESENTED

BY EFFECTS

FIXED ASSETS 634,527.76 634,527.76  -      -      55,279.00    -      -      -     

Long term loans  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Other financial claims 634,527.76 634,527.76  -      -     55,279.00  -      -      -     

CurrENT ASSETS 151,016,817.98 25,426,969.60 125,589,848.38  -     53,810,785.08 13,563,155.50 14,288,078.24  -     

Supplier receivables,  
advances and deposits 144,950.00 140,000.00  4,950.00    -      -      -      -      -     

Accounts receivable 132,754,727.27 25,286,969.60 107,467,757.67  -     52,641,568.16  -     12,057,480.24  -     

Staffing 698,755.57  -     698,755.57  -     182,620.93  -      -      -     

State 13,563,155.50  -     13,563,155.50  -      -     13,563,155.50  -      -     

Related accounts  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Other debtors 2,230,598.00  -     2,230,598.00  -      -      -      2,230,598.00    -     

Other asset clearing  
accounts 1,624,631.64  -     1,624,631.64  -     986,595.99  -      -      -     

STATEMENT OF DEBTS

DEBTS AMOuNT

ANALYSIS BY DuE DATE OTHErS ANALYSES

MOrE THAN 
ONE YEAr

LESS THAN 
ONE YEAr

DuE AND
NOT 

rECOVErED

AMOuNT IN 
FOrEIGN 

CurrENCY

AMOuNTS TO 
STATE

AND PuBLIC 
BODIES

AMOuNTS TO
rELATED 

COMPANIES

AMOuNTS 
rEPrESENTED

BY EFFECTS

FINANCING DEBTS 36,951,242.84 29,172,033.88 7,779,208.96  -     

Bonds  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Other financing debts 36,951,242.84 29,172,033.88 7,779,208.96  -      -      -      -      -     

CurrENT LIABILITIES 79,304,386.67 13,796,562.42 65,507,824.25 - 52,658,283.23 5,493,574.70 35,149,072.92 636,315.78

Accounts payable 48,174,956.28 13,796,562.42 34,378,393.86  -     42,048,807.54  -     35,149,072.92 636,315.78

Customer credits,  
advances and deposits 120,256.17 - 120,256.17  -     -  -      -      -     

Staffing  11,122,599.81    -     11,122,599.81  -     155,181.76  -      -      -     

State 2,566,605.24  -     2,566,605.24  -      -     2,566,605.24  -      -     

Social security 2,926,969.46  -     2,926,969.46  -      -     2,926,969.46  -      -     

Related accounts  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Others creditors 83,291.00  -     83,291.00  -      -      -      -      -     

Clearing accounts -  
Liabilities 14,309,708.71  -     14,309,708.71  -     10,454,293.93  -      -      -     

Miscellaneous creditors  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

STATEMENT OF EQuITY INVESTMENTS

Corporate name
of the issuing company Activity sector Capital 

Stock

Participation
Stake

%

Aggregate 
purchase 

price
price

Net Book 
Value 

Extract from the latest summary 
statements of the issuing company

Earnings 
recorded

for the C.P.C. 
of the year

Closing 
date Net Worth Net 

earnings

INVOLIA Computer Services  1,970,000.00    30 %  1,200,000.00    -     31/12/12 -406,745.57   -94,073.52    -     

GLOBAL PAYMENT 
SYSTEMS

Computer Services 27,013,038.45    25 %  8,104,884.25    8,104,884.25   31/12/12 24,906,866.00   7,492,128.00   

ICPS Computer Services 27,571,110.90    20 %  5,514,222.18    5,514,222.18   31/12/12 20,916,447.60   1,205,764.40   

HPS EUROPE Computer Services  3,413,658.60   100.00%  3,413,658.60    3,413,658.60   31/12/12  3,865,209.58    151,253.20   

ACP QUALIFE Computer Services  3,631,107.48   100.00% 61,449,011.26 61,449,011.26   31/12/12
 

34,798,378.56   
 963,483.77   

HPS AMERICAS Computer Services  17,206.00   50.00%  8,603.00    8,603.00   31/12/12  -      -     

TOTAL 79,690,379.29 78,490,379.29    -    

STATEMENT OF PrOVISIONS

TYPE
AMOuNT 

BEGINNING 
OF YEAr

ALLOWANCES rECOVErIES AMOuNT 
END OF 

YEArOPErATIONS TrANSACTIONS NON-
CurrENT OPErATIONS TrANSACTIONS NON-

CurrENT

SuB TOTAL (A)  1,200,000.00    -      -      -      -      -      -     
 

1,200,000.00   

Provisions for fixed assets  1,200,000.00    -      -      -      -      -      1,200,000.00   

Statutory provisions   -      -      -      -      -      -      -     

Long Term Provision for Contingencies  -      -      -     

SuB TOTAL (B)  23,151,081.65    10,449,659.90    1,086,289.83    -      11,577,901.84    562,401.50    -      22,546,728.04   

Provisions for depreciation of current assets(non-cash)  20,556,158.99    9,953,331.77    -      -      11,375,807.74    -      -      19,133,683.02   

 Other provisions for contingencies  2,594,922.66    496,328.13    1,086,289.83    -      202,094.10    562,401.50    -      3,413,045.02   

Provisions for depreciation of cash accounts  -      -      -     

TOTAL (A+B)  24,351,081.65    10,449,659.90    1,086,289.83    -      11,577,901.84    562,401.50    -     23,746,728.04   
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TABLE OF FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

THIrD PArTY CrEDITOrS Or DEBTOrS 2012 2011

COMMITMENTS GIVEN  22,224,295.03    25,798,179.03   

BEAC  2,781,322.05    2,781,322.05   
BEAC  6,953,305.12    6,953,305.12   

POOYA  1,024,064.85    1,024,064.85   

BANKSOHAR SAOG  60,000.00    60,000.00   

BANK OF GHANA  511,200.00    511,200.00   

FINANCE AND TREASURY  36,000.00    36,000.00   

SG ALGER  167,055.00    167,055.00   

AMEX  5,474,180.00    8,211,270.00   

POSTE MAROC  14,400.00    14,400.00   

BANK OF CYPRUS PUBLIC  1,128,200.00    1,128,200.00   

CAC BANK  1,728,289.42    1,728,289.42   

CENTRAL COOPERATIVE BANK CYPRUS  569,650.00    569,650.00   

GIMTEL MAURITANIA  341,790.00    341,790.00   

SNAM  200,115.00    200,115.00   

SOFAC  50,000.00    50,000.00   

POSTE MAROC  35,158.00    35,158.00   

AL BARID BANK  32,400.00    -     

AL BARID BANK  75,600.00    -     

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  27,230.00    27,230.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  106,566.00    106,566.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  -      210,000.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  -      588,000.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  -      162,000.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  126,950.00    -     

BARID ALMAGHRIB  40,000.00    40,000.00   

BARID ALMAGHRIB  -      111,744.00   

BARID BANK  70,000.00    70,000.00   

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT  100,000.00    100,000.00   

BANQUE POPULAIRE  12,000.00    12,000.00   

BANQUE POPULAIRE  2,500.00    2,500.00   

BANQUE POPULAIRE  60,000.00    60,000.00   

FONDATION BANQUE POPULAIRE  150,000.00    150,000.00   

POSTE MAROC  19,000.00    19,000.00   

POSTE MAROC  56,719.59    56,719.59   

POSTE MAROC  75,600.00    75,600.00   

MAROC TELECOM  195,000.00    195,000.00   

Commitments for retirement pensions and similar 
obligations  -      -     

Other commitments given - - 

COMMITMENTS rECEIVED  5,951,011.62    5,951,011.62   

CFAO TECHNOLOGIES CAMERON  2,423,239.70    2,423,239.70   
CFAO TECHNOLOGIES CAMERON  969,295.88    969,295.88   

ASSOCIATED BUSINESS MACHINES (ABM)  2,558,476.05    2,558,476.05   

Other commitments received  -      -     

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS

TYPE 2012 2011

FIXED ASSETS  63,356,298      73,734,384     

Goodwill  24,181,838      27,406,083     

Intangible Assets  12,428,515      14,141,920     

Tangible Fixed Assets  16,373,073      22,752,832     

Financial Fixed Assets  981,797      1,074,064     

Investments in associates  9,391,077      8,359,485     

CurrENT ASSETS  213,157,740      253,882,623     

Inventory and work in progress  27,801,210      41,829,552     

Accounts receivable  130,456,011      156,478,056     

Deferred tax assets  3,477,359      4,000,249     

Other receivables and accruals  25,146,534      25,954,064     

Availability  26,276,626      25,620,702     

TOTAL ASSETS  276,514,038      327,617,007     

BALANCE SHEET - LIABILITIES

TYPE 2012 2011

EQuITY  140,187,181     123,119,144    

Capital  70,359,900      70,359,900     

Issue premiums  31,623,410      31,623,410     

Consolidated reserves  19,986,987      68,662,816     

Consolidated earnings  18,216,884     -47,526,982     

Minority interests  -        -       

OWN EQuITY  140,187,181      123,119,144     

Long Term Liabilities  59,025,448      71,665,098     

Long Term Financial Debts  50,134,249      62,786,075     

Conditional advances  8,891,199      8,879,023     

Current Liabilities  77,301,409      132,832,765     

Accounts receivable  22,372,623      19,839,144     

Other receivables and accruals  50,003,728      40,356,968     

Deferred tax liabilities  -        352,109     

Cash liabilities  4,925,059      72,284,543     

TOTAL LIABILITIES  276,514,038      327,617,007     

Consolidated Financial Statements 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES

TYPE 2012 2011

OPErATING rEVENuES  281,606,074      250,142,794     

Sales Turnover  277,096,735      266,419,667     

Change in product inventories -9,649,567     -29,988,124     

Capitalized production  -        -       

Other Operating Revenues  14,158,906      13,711,251     

 OPErATING EXPENSES 254,719,718     261,247,604     

Consumable purchases 25,051,105     33,019,542     

External expenses 59,812,042     54,331,939     

Staffing costs 141,567,629     140,758,884     

Other Operating Expenses 995,428     6,965,951     

Taxes and duties 8,623,164     6,640,073     

Operating allowances 18,670,350     19,531,215     

 OPErATING EArNINGS  26,886,356     -11,104,810     

 Financial revenues and expenses -5,200,468     -7,087,327     

 CurrENT EArNINGS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES  21,685,887     -18,192,137     

 Non-current revenues and expenses  79,901     -26,037,431     

Income taxes on earnings -1,709,036     -324,495     

NET EArNINGS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES  20,056,753     -44,554,063     

Share of earnings of associated companies  1,384,376      253,836     

Allowances for amortization of goodwill -3,224,245     -3,226,755     

CONSOLIDATED NET EArNINGS  18,216,884     -47,526,982     

Minority interests  -        -       

NET EARNINGS (GROup SHARE)  18,216,884     -47,526,982     

Earnings per share  25.89     67.55     

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

 TYPE 2012 2011

Net income of consolidated companies 18,216,884 -47,526,981

Depreciation allowances 8,310,398 9,598,966

Change in deferred taxes 374,788 -70,927

Capital gains or losses -425,077 92,613

Other revenues (expenses) net of non cash effects -803,476 3,226,755

Share of profits of associated companies -1,384,376 -253,836

Cash flows from consolidated companies 24,289,141 -34,933,410

Dividends received from associated companies - -

Change in working capital needs related to operating activities 53,038,155 43,333,144

Net cash flow provided by operating activities  77,327,296 8,399,734

Cash flows related to investment transactions -501,561 -5,447,592

Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets -1,509,830 -5,447,592

Disposal of fixed assets, net of tax 1,008,269 -

Disposal of equities of associated companies - -

Net acquisition of shares of consolidated companies - -

Cash flows from financing operations -8,801,533 -7,192,446

Dividends paid to parent company shareholders - -5,628,792

Capital increase in cash - -

Other 138,378 1,953,741

Changes in borrowings -8,939,911 -3,517,395

Conversion movements -8,793 -50,266

Increase (decrease) in cash 68,015,409 -4,290,570

Cash at beginning of the year  -46,663,841 -42,373,271

Cash at the end of the year  21,351,568 -46,663,841

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED EQuITY FOr 2012 AND 2011

 Capital  Issue 
premiums

Foreign 
exchange 

differences

 Consolidated 
reserves and 

earnings  
 Total Group 

share   Minorities   Total  

Position at December 31, 2010. 70,359,900 31,623,410 -524,595 74,179,819 175,638,534 - 175,638,534

Distribution of dividends - - - -5,628,792 -5,628,792 - -5,628,792

Increase in capital - - - - - - -

Net earnings for the year - - - -47,526,981 -47,526,981 - -47,526,981

Exchange differences - - 636,383 - 636,383 - 636,383

Other differences - - - - - - -

Position at December 31, 2011. 70,359,900 31,623,410 111,788 21,024,046 123,119,144 - 123,119,144

Distribution of dividends - - - - - - -

Increase in capital - - - - - - -

Net earnings for the year - - - 18,216,884 18,216,884 - 18,216,884

Exchange differences - - -1,148,847 - -1,148,847 - -1,148,847

Other differences - - - - - - -

Position at December 31, 2012. 70,359,900 31,623,410 -1,037,059 39,240,930 140,187,181 - 140,187,181



58 59Financial Report -	Annual	Report	2012

Financial Report

1. Activity of the group 
The HPS Group operates mainly in the field of electronic 
banking: software publishing, consulting, training, auditing 
and electronic payment processing for

2. Highlights of the year 

Activity in 2012 was very strong, both in terms of business 
performance and in terms of operational performance and 
deployment of projects. Thus, the increase by 42 per cent 
over 2011 is explained by a sharp increase in orders (125 
%) and the deployment of major projects, especially in the 
European market.

3. Accounting principles and valuation methods 

The financial statements of companies within the scope 
of consolidation served as the basis for preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements following the accounting 
rules and practises applicable to Morocco.

The Group's main rules and methods are as follows:

3.1 Terms and Methods of Consolidation

As provided by the Circulars of the Ethics Council for 
Transferable Securities (Conseil Déontologique des Valeurs 
Mobilières - CDVM), the HPS Group decided to present its 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the 
methodology of the National Accounting Council (Conseil 
National de la Comptabilité - CNC) relating to consolidated 
accounts (Notice Nº5).

The consolidation is based on individual accounts 
of the companies included in consolidation, after 
making adjustments prior to homogenization and 
consolidation. 

The Group's main rules and methods are as follows:

3.1.1 Methods and scope of consolidation

The companies over which the Group exercises, directly 
or indirectly, exclusive control are fully consolidated. This 
is assumed for companies controlled more than 50%. 
Exclusive control is the power, direct or indirect, to govern 
the financial and operational policies of a business to 
benefit from its activities.

The companies over which the Group exercises, directly 
or indirectly, significant influence are consolidated using 
the equity method. Significant influence is assumed to 
exist when HPS holds, directly or indirectly, 20% or more 
of the voting rights of an entity, unless it can be clearly 
demonstrated that this is not the case.

The consolidation scope of the HPS Group is detailed at 
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 as follows:

Scope at 31/12/2012 Scope at 31/12/2012

Company % control % of interest Consolidation 
method

% control % of interest Consolidation 
method

HPS 100% 100% IG 100% 100% IG 

GPS 25% 25% MEE 25% 25% MEE

ICPS 20% 20% MEE 20% 20% MEE

HPS Europe 100% 100% IG 100% 100% IG 

ACP Qualife 100% 100% IG 100% 100% IG 

Involia 0% 30% Excluded 0% 30% Excluded

Equity participation in the companies GPS, ICPS and HPS 
Europe was realized at the time of their creation and 
therefore does not lead to recognition of goodwill.

The Involia company was excluded from the scope of 
consolidation given the loss of significant influence due to 
the liquidation of the company.

3.1.2 Year End Dates

All the consolidated companies close their annual financial 
statements on December 31 with the exception of ICPS 
whose year end date is June 30.

3.1.3 Conversion of subsidiaries' accounting records 
from foreign currency

For subsidiaries whose operating currency is their 
local currency (ICPS and GPS), in which most of their 
transactions are denominated, their balance sheet is 
converted into Durhams based on the exchange rates 
prevailing at the balance sheet closing date. Their income 
statement is converted at the average of the period. 
Resulting conversion differences are recorded as an 
exchange conversion adjustment in consolidated equity.

The accounts of subsidiaries that do not have financial 
autonomy (HPS Europe and ACPQualife) are converted 
using the historical exchange rate. Non-monetary items, 
including equity, are converted using the historical 
exchange rate; monetary items are converted at the 
exchange rate prevailing at the closing date. Income 
and expenses are generally converted at the average for 
the period. Conversion adjustments resulting from this 
method both on monetary items stated on the Balance 
Sheet and on elements of the Statement of Income and 
Expenses are recognized on the Income Statement under 
"Financial Income and Expenses."

3.1.4 Intangible Fixed Assets

These consist mainly of the VISION software acquired 
as part of the ACPQUALIFE takeover. This software is 
amortized over 10 years. 

Research and development costs incurred by the Group 
are expensed.

3.1.5 Tangible Fixed Assets

These are recorded at their acquisition or production 
cost. Depreciation is calculated on the straight 
line basis based on the expected life as follows: 

-Constructions 25  years

-Computer hardware 3.33 years to 5 
years

-Plant, machinery and equipment 10 years

Rolling Stock  5 years

-Furniture and office equipment                                    5 to 10 years

Leasing transactions are restated as capital acquisitions 
when they are significant. They are accounted for on the 
Balance Sheet as a capital asset and a corresponding loan 
account and on the Statement of Income and Expenses as 
a depreciation expense and a liability. In addition, capital 
gains during leaseback transactions should be spread over 
the term of the contract, where the property is included as 
part of a financing transaction. 

Capital gains on intra-group transfers are cancelled when 
significant. When the transfer of a fixed asset was done 
by a fully consolidated company to an equity consolidated 
company the income from the sale is cancelled, against a 
portion of a liability clearing account, up to the percentage 
held of the subsidiary. The share of earnings on disposal is 
included in the Group's consolidated income at the same 
rate as the term of depreciation of a fixed asset by the 
subsidiary.

3.1.6 Financial Fixed Assets
Non-consolidated shares are shown on the balance sheet 
at their cost of.acquisition.
A provision for depreciation is made after analyzing case 
by case the financial situations of these companies.
Claims related to affiliates correspond to loans to 
enterprises in which the Group holds an interest and which 
are not consolidated by integration.

3.1.7 Inventories

Inventories consist of long term work in progress and are 
stated at their production cost. Any probable future loss 
recorded during execution of a contract is accrued in its 
entirety.

Any profit estimated with sufficient assurance is recorded 
as a partial net earnings proportional to the progress 
in completion of the contract. Benefits associated with 
contracts and licenses for certain projects are taken into 
account according to the partial net profit method.

Inventories also include, for certain projects, amounts of 
licences sold but not invoiced as of December 31, 2012, 
and are valued at their selling price.

3.1.8 receivables, Payables & Sales
Receivables and Payables are recorded at their nominal 
value. A provision for depreciation is recognized in respect 
of disputed receivables and older receivables based on the 
risk related to their recovery. 
Receivables (and payables) denominated in foreign 
currencies are valued based on the exchange rate 
prevailing at the closing date of the year or period. The 
unrealized losses and unrealized gains are recognized in 
income.
Revenue is recorded when the service has been rendered 
to the customer. 
Contracts outstanding at the balance sheet closing date 

are accounted for using the partial net income method and 
are included in accounts receivable.

3.1.9 Investment securities

Investment securities are recorded at acquisition cost. A 
provision is recognized when the realizable value is lower 
than the acquisition price.

3.1.10 Statutory Provisions

Fiscal statutory provisions are cancelled upon consolidation

3.111 Provisions for risks and expenses

These provisions are valued at the balance sheet closing 
date, to cover risks and expenses that past or current 
events render probable, clearly specified as to their 
purpose, but whose outcome is uncertain.

3.1.12 restatement of Taxes

Income taxes include all taxes based on income, whether 
due or deferred.

Deferred taxes resulting from neutralization of temporary 
differences introduced by tax rules and consolidation 
adjustments are calculated for each company.

Evaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities is based on 
the manner by which the Group expects to recover or settle 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the closing date. 
All deferred tax liabilities are recorded, however, deferred 
tax liabilities are only carried as an asset on the balance 
sheet if their recovery is likely.

At December 31, 2011, the HPS Group had a deferrable 
fiscal deficit of KDH 38,766 utilized in the amount of 20,168 
in 2012. The residue carried forward of this tax deficit has 
not led to recognition of a deferred tax asset in accordance 
with the principle of prudence.

3.1.13 Non-operating earnings

Accounts of revenues and non-current expenses are 
intended to record revenue and expenses that are not 
deferred from either normal operation or the company's 
financial activity, and therefore having a non-recurring 
nature.

3.1.14. Goodwill
Goodwill generated following acquisition of a subsidiary 
is amortized over the term of the business plan used to 
determine the cost of acquisition.
Goodwill recorded at December 31, 2012, relates to the 
acquisition of ACPQualife and is amortized over 10 years 
beginning July 1, 2010.

3.1.15 Earnings Per Share

Consolidated net income per share is calculated based 
on the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding during the year.

3.1.16 Cash Flow Statement

The statement of cash flows is present using the indirect 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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method, whereby net profit is adjusted for the impact 
of transactions of a non-monetary nature, changes in 
working capital needs related to activities and items of 
income or expenses related to cash flows of investments 
or financing.

3.1.17 research Tax Credit

Research tax credits benefiting French subsidiaries are 
recorded as a deduction to the income tax expense for the 
year. 

In addition, two grants were obtained under the Vision 
research and development program, from OSEA (amounting 
to €700K) and of the General Council (amounting to €100K). 
These grants will be subject to refund, possibly partial 
in case of commercial failure of the program, under a 
contractual calendar, without interest. As of December 
31, 2012, these amounts have been recorded as liabilities 
on the balance sheet. A deferred tax asset for the amount 
of research tax credit that would result from actual 
repayment of these grants was recorded. 

In case of actual repayment of these grants, the 
corresponding amounts are eligible for research tax 
credit. The corresponding asset is recognized in other 
receivables.

3. 2 related companies 
HPS SA does business with the companies ICPS and GPS 
for the sale of PowerCARD licencing and related services. 
The total amount invoiced by HPS SA to ICPS and GPS for 
these commercial transactions during 2012 amounted to 
KDH 6,704 and KDH 3,452 respectively. 
The internal margin achieved HPS SA on these transaction 
is cancelled by consolidation in exchange for liability 
accrual, up to the ownership percentage of affiliation. The 
share of earnings on disposal is included in the Group's 
consolidated income at the same rate as the term of 
depreciation of licenses by each of these two entities.
As of December 31, 2012, the customer balance of ICPS 
and GPS with HPS SA amounted to KDH 8 and KDH 155 
respectively.
The amount for services invoiced by HPS Europe to 
Hightech Payment Systems for 2012 amounted to KDH 
8,285, excluding taxes.

3. 3 Off-Balance Sheet undertakings

 TABLE OF FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
THIrD PArTY CrEDITOrS Or DEBTOrS 2012 2011

COMMITMENTS GIVEN  22,224,295.03    25,798,179.03   

BEAC  2,781,322.05    2,781,322.05   

BEAC  6,953,305.12    6,953,305.12   

POOYA  1,024,064.85    1,024,064.85   

BANKSOHAR SAOG  60,000.00    60,000.00   

BANK OF GHANA  511,200.00    511,200.00   

FINANCE AND TREASURY  36,000.00    36,000.00   

SG ALGER  167,055.00    167,055.00   

AMEX  5,474,180.00    8,211,270.00   

POSTE MAROC  14,400.00    14,400.00   

BANK OF CYPRUS PUBLIC  1,128,200.00    1,128,200.00   

CAC BANK  1,728,289.42    1,728,289.42   

CENTRAL COOPERATIVE BANK CYPRUS  569,650.00    569,650.00   

GIMTEL MAURITANIA  341,790.00    341,790.00   

SNAM  200,115.00    200,115.00   

SOFAC  50,000.00    50,000.00   

POSTE MAROC  35,158.00    35,158.00   

AL BARID BANK  32,400.00    -     

AL BARID BANK  75,600.00    -     

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  27,230.00    27,230.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  106,566.00    106,566.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  -      210,000.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  -      588,000.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  -      162,000.00   

CREDIT AGRICOLE DU MAROC  126,950.00    -     

BARID ALMAGHRIB  40,000.00    40,000.00   

BARID ALMAGHRIB  -      111,744.00   

BARID BANK  70,000.00    70,000.00   

MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT  100,000.00    100,000.00   

BANQUE POPULAIRE  12,000.00    12,000.00   

BANQUE POPULAIRE  2,500.00    2,500.00   

BANQUE POPULAIRE  60,000.00    60,000.00   

FONDATION BANQUE POPULAIRE  150,000.00    150,000.00   

POSTE MAROC  19,000.00    19,000.00   

POSTE MAROC  56,719.59    56,719.59   

POSTE MAROC  75,600.00    75,600.00   

MAROC TELECOM  195,000.00    195,000.00   

Commitments for retirement pensions and similar 
obligations  -      -     

Other commitments given - - 
COMMITMENTS rECEIVED  5,951,011.62    5,951,011.62   

CFAO TECHNOLOGIES CAMERON  2,423,239.70    2,423,239.70   

CFAO TECHNOLOGIES CAMERON  969,295.88    969,295.88   

ASSOCIATED BUSINESS MACHINES (ABM)  2,558,476.05    2,558,476.05   

Other commitments received  -      -     

3. 4 Information by Sector 
Despite an economic environment that is still troubled, the 
Group experienced a rebound in its performance in 2012 
with organic growth of its activities of 12.6% and a positive 
momentum on the whole of its geographical areas. 
Payment activities recorded strong growth (+18%), while 
services brought by ACPQualife activities remained stable 
in a difficult economic context in France.
As such, 2012 posted a strong business recovery with a 
very strong increase in revenues related to new customers 
(+42%) and revenues generated by our existing customers 
(+29%).
Over the year, the Group's operating margin was 26.9 
million Durhams, representing a margin rate of 9.5%.
This performance particularly reflects adaptation of 
accounting methods for recognition of licensing revenue 
that is smoothed over the duration of projects and also 
recorded the signing of contracts. Smoothing of license 
revenues over the duration of  projects negatively affected 
revenues and operating profits of 10.1 million Durhams, 
and the operating margin by 3.1% base points. 

The Group also continued efforts to streamline expenses, 
resulted in a reduction of 2.5% in operating expenses.

The outsourcing strategy continued to be implemented, 
to optimize the Group's flexibility. This strategy enabled 
reducing the workforce by 10% in 2012 and the permanent 
payroll by 6.5%. 

Finally, the Group maintained ongoing efforts to reduce its 
working capital, including by reducing the average time 
for implementation of projects and the average time for 
customer payment. These results were possible due to 
the proximity of regional entities and their full operational 
autonomy. These efforts enabled reaching a cash flow from 
operations of 77.3 million Durhams and a net cash net flow 
of 68 million Durhams. The use of cash consisted mainly 
of repayment of the financing debt by 8 million Durhams.

The consequence of this performance is the reduction of 
financial interest costs and in the financial result by 26%.

It had the result of a net income for the Group of 25.9 
Durhams per share, or a PER of 9.65 over the course of 
December 31, 2012.

At 31/12/2012, the breakdown for the year of the HPS SA 
Company is as follows: 

Activity by region
 

Activity by Nature 
      
 

       
 

   
            

3. 5 Post-Closing Events 
None

Other revenue 10%

Cross Selling 21%
Maintenance 23%

Services 22%

New Projects 27%
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SuMMArY OF THE AuDIT rEPOrT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOuNTS
YEAr FrOM JANuArY 1 TO DECEMBEr 31, 2012

HIGHTECH PAYMENT SYSTEMS GrOuP "HPS"

We have conducted the audit of the attached consolidated financial statements of HIGHTECH PAYMENT SYSTEMS 
Group (HPS Group), including the balance sheet, the statement of earnings, the statement of changes in equity and 
the statement of cash flow for the year ended on December 31, 2012, as well as a notes containing a summary of 
principal accounting methods and other explanatory information. These summary financial statements show an amount 
of consolidated equity of 140,187 KMAD, including consolidated net profits of 18,217 KMAD.

Management is responsible for preparation and fair presentation of these summary financial statements in accordance 
with the national accounting standards accepted in effect.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the standards of the profession in Morocco.

In our opinion, the summary consolidated financial statements referred to in the first paragraph above present a fair 
reflection, in all material aspects, the financial position of the HPS Group as at December 31, 2012, as well as the 
financial performance and cash flow for the year ended on that date, in accordance with the accounting standards and 
principles described in the consolidated statement of additional information.

Casablanca, 21/03/2013

The Auditors

ErNST & YOuNG

Bachir Tazi
Associate

A. SAAIDI & 
ASSOCIES

Nawfal Amar
Associate

ErNST & YOuNG SArL
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SuMMArY OF THE AuDITOr'S rEPOrT
YEAr FrOM JANuArY 1 TO DECEMBEr 31, 2012

HIGHTECH PAYMENT SYSTEMS GrOuP "HPS" S.A.

In accordance with the terms of our appointment at the Annual General Meeting, we hereby present our report for the 
year ended December 31, 2012.

We have audited the accompanying summary statements of the HIGHTECH PAYMENT SYSTEMS "HPS" S.A. Company 
consisting of the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Revenues and Expenses, the Statement of Management Balances, the 
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Additional Information (ETIC) for the year ended December 31, 2012 These 
financial statements show an amount of equity and similar of 151,358,257.61 MAD, including net profits for the year of 
20,972,409.23 MAD.

Management is responsible for preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting standards accepted in Morocco.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have conducted our audit 
according to the standards of the profession in Morocco and taking the legal and regulatory provisions in force.

We certify that the financial statements referred to above are true and fair and fairly reflect, in all material respects, the 
results of operations for the year ended as well as the financial position and assets of the Company at December 31, 
2012, in accordance with accounting standards accepted in Morocco.

Verifications and Specific Information

We have also performed the specific tests provided by law and we have verified the consistency of information given in the 
Annual Report of the Board of Directors for shareholders with the financial statements of the Company.

Casablanca, 21/03/2013
The Auditors

ErNST & YOuNG

Bachir Tazi
Associate

A. SAAIDI & 
ASSOCIES

Nawfal Amar
Associate

ErNST & YOuNG SArL
37, Bd Abdellatif Ben Kaddour
Casablanca
Morocco

A. SAAIDI ET ASSOCIES
Commissaires aux Comptes

A. SAAIDI & ASSOCIES
4, place Maréchal
Casablanca
Morocco
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Report
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First Resolution
The Ordinary General Meeting, having heard the reports from the Board of Directors and Auditors, approves 
the Balance Sheet and Financial Statements for 2012 as presented, resulting in a net recorded profit of 
20.972.409,23 Durhams. It approves all the transactions reflected in these statements or summarized in 
these reports.

Second Resolution
As a result of the adoption of the preceding resolution, the Ordinary General Meeting, discharges the 
Directors and Auditors, from their duties for 2012.

Third Resolution
The Ordinary General Meeting, having heard the reading of the special Auditor's Report on the agreements 
referred to in Article 56 of Law 17-95, approves the transactions concluded or executed during the year.

Fourth Resolution
The Ordinary General Meeting, approves the following allocation of earnings:

Allocation of Earnings  Position at December 31, 2012.  Allocation of income 2012  Situation after allocation  

Share or owner's capital  70,359,900.00    -      70,359,900.00   

Issue, merger, contribution 
premium 

 31,623,410.00    -      31,623,410.00   

Statutory reserve  7,035,990.00    -      7,035,990.00   

Other reserves  -      -      -     

Carried forward  21,366,548.38    10,418,424.23    31,784,972.61   

Net earnings for the year  20,972,409.23    -      -     

Distribution of dividends  -      10,553,985.00    10,553,985.00   

Total  151,358,257.61    20,972,409.23    151,358,257.61   

A dividend of 15 Dirhams per share will therefore be distributed and will be payable on July 25, 2013.

Fifth resolution
The Ordinary General Meeting notes that the mandate of the Ernst&Young Auditors expires at the end of this 
Meeting. The Ordinary General Meeting renews the Auditors mandate of the Ernst&Young firm.
Its mandate will expire on the date of the Ordinary General Meeting called to approve the accounts for 2015.

Sixth Resolution
The General Meeting sets the total amount of fees to be divided among the Directors at 600,000 Durhams 
for 2013.

Seventh Resolution
The General Meeting acknowledges the resignation of Mrs. Rokia Goudrar of her directorship on December 
5, 2012 and gives full, entire and final discharge her administrator management duties.

Eighth Resolution
The Ordinary General Assembly, gives the bearer of a copy or an extract hereof all powers to effect the legal 
formalities.

Draft Resolutions






